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Independent Auditor's Report

The County Commissioners of Charles County
La Plata, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of The County Commissioners of Charles County (the
County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Board of
Library Trustees for Charles County, Maryland, a discretely presented component unit, which
represent .35 percent of the assets, (.10) percent of the net assets, and 1.08 percent of the
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented components units. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors, whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the
financial statements, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Board of Library Trustees
for Charles County, Maryland are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of June 30,
2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable thereof, for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 29,
2010, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Audit Standards and should be read in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

11710 Beltsville Drive
Suite 300
Calverton, Maryland 20705

tel: 301-931-2050
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The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary information as listed on the table of
contents and the schedule of employer contributions and schedule of funding progress for the
sheriff's office retirement plan and schedule of employer contributions and schedule of funding
progress for the county employees retirement plan included in note 6 and schedule of funding
progress and schedule of employer contributions to the OPEB plan included in note 7 are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information,
as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

%WLL/A

Calverton, Maryland
October 29, 2010
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the financial performance of The County Commissioners of
Charles County, Maryland provides an overview of the County’s financial activities for the Fiscal Year
ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to use the information presented here in conjunction with
the financial statements (beginning on page 17), and the accompanying notes to those financial
statements (beginning on page 34).

Financial Highlights

x The government-wide assets of Charles County exceeded liabilities at the close of the current
fiscal year by $397.9 miilion (net assets). A decrease in assets is primarily due to a revenue
budget shortfall from lower than expected income tax and interest income earnings. The
economic recession has directly impacted many of the County’s revenue sources.

- The County’s change in net assets was a reduction of $1.6 mitlion.

) o As of the close of the current fiscal year, Charles County’'s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balances of $67.5 mitlion, a decrease of $9.8 million from the prior year.
Approximately 67% of this total amount, or $45.1 mitlion, is classified as unreserved fund
balance. However, 95% of this unreserved fund balance, or $42.9 million is designated due to
policy and operations. The smallest portion of fund balance available for spending at the
government’s discretion is unreserved and undesignated fund balance of $2.2 million.

¥ Unreserved undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $2.2 million or less than 1% of
General Fund expenditures at June 30, 2010. The County’s revenue policy sets a goal to
establish fund balance at a minimum of 8% of operating revenues. For FY2010, $23.3 million of
fund balance is designated as Policy Target of the total $45.3 million.

* The County maintains a long-term financial plan that calls for the reinvestment of fund balance
over the course of the next five years of approximately $3 million to fund capital projects,
another $6 million to fund debt service associated with new schools, and $2 million to stabilize
future health care costs.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s financial statements.
Charles County’s financial statements include three components: (1) government-wide financial
statements, {2} fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the financial statements
themselves. The diagram below illustrates how each element of the statements can be used to enhance
the overall understanding of the information presented.
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Financial Statement Presentation

MD&A
Summary and analysis of overall activities | Goverhment-witde Statements
Overall coverage of the government
Financial Statements Fund Statements
Presentation of financial infermation . Focus on major and fiduciary funds
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information

Other Supplementary Information

Government-wide financial statements (Reporting on the County as a Whole}

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of Charles County Government’s finances, in a manner similar to that of a private-sector
business. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Historical trending of these increases and
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reporied as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change cccurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues {governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges {business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general
government, public safety, education, highway and street maintenance, health, parks, and recreation.
The husiness-type activities of the County include water and sewer services, solid waste management,
environmental services (recycling) programs, golf course operation, recreation programs, vending, and
development services (plan review and inspection).

The government-wide financial statements include not only the ocperations of Charles County
Government itself (known as the primary government), but also the legally separate organizations of the
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Board of Education of Charles County, Maryland, and the Board of Library Trustees for Charles County,
Maryland (component units). The financial information for these component units is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government. The government-wide
financial statements can be found on pages 17-19 of this report.

Fund financial statements {Reporting on the County’s Most Significant Funds)

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like state and other local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing reguirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is much narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financtal statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities

Charles County Government maintains twenty-four individual governmental funds. Information
is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the General Fund, the Capital
Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
twenty-one governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
governmental fund financial statements. The governmental fund financial statements can be found on
pages 21-23 of this report.

Proprietary funds - Proprietary funds include internal service funds and enterprise funds. An
internal service fund is an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County’s various functions. Charles County does not maintain any internal service funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer
services, solid waste management, environmental services programs, golf course operations, some
recreational programs, vending and development services.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the Water and Sewer Fund and Solid Waste Fund, which are considered major
funds of the County. The remaining five enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated
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presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. The proprietary fund financial statements can
be found on pages 24-27 of this report.

Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the County, Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. Fiduciary
funds include four fund types - pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trusts, and
agency funds. The County does not maintain any investment trust funds or private-purpose trusts. The
three trust funds maintained by the County are the Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan. The County
Employees Retirernent Plan, and the QOther Past Employment Benefit {OPEB) Trust plan. The single
agency fund that the County maintains is the Volunteer Emergency Services Length Of Services Awards
Program (LOSAP) plan. The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this
report.

Notes to the finoncial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to
developing a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 36-95 of this report.

Required supplementary information. |n addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report presents certain required supplementary information that is not considered a part of the
financial statements. Included in this section is a budgetary comparison for the General Fund, which
demonstrates compliance with the annually adopted budget. This information can be found on page 98
of this report.

Other supplementary information. Qther supplementary information includes the Combining Balance
Sheet and the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for other
non-major governmental funds. Also presented here are the Combining Statement of Net Assets, the
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, and the Combining Statement
of Cash Flows for the other non-major proprietary funds. These reports can be found on pages 101-108
of this report,

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, trend analysis of net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In Charles County, assets exceeded liabilities by $397.9 million at the close of the
most recent fiscal year, as shown in the summary schedule of net assets below.

By far the largest portion of Charles County’s net assets, 5388 million (97%), reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment), less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide
services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the County’s net assets {5%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used.
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Net Assets
June 30, 2010 and 2009
{amounts are presented in thousands)

Governmental Activites Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other assets 5 190713 ¢ 199,080 & 40875 & 32,708 ¢ 231588 ¢ 231,788
Capital assets, net of
depreciation 444011 432,516 186,057 184,670 630,068 617,186
Total assets 634,724 631,596 226,932 217,378 861,656 848,974
Non-current liabilities 303,164 298,865 98,038 85,230 401,202 384,095
Other liabilities 58,127 57,394 4,490 8,046 62,617 65,440
Total liabilities 361,291 356,259 102,528 93276 463,819 449,535
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 286,448 277,294 101,484 109,407 387,932 386,701
Restricted net assets 21.247 21,012 0 0 21,247 21,012
Unrestricted net assets {34,262) {22,969) 22,920 14,695 {11,342} (8,274)
Total net assets $ 273433 $ 275337 $ 124404 0§ 124102 $ 397,837 $ 399,439
7
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Changes in Net Assets
Years ended fune 30, 2010 and 2003
{amounts are presented in thousands)

Governmental Activites Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2008 2010 2009
Program revenues:
Charges for services [ 13,958 S 13,471 % 38,787 & 36,245 S 53,745 % 49,716
Operating grants 31,458 30,173 0 o} 31,458 30,173
Capital grants 3,632 4,556 1,040 923 4,672 5,47%
General revenues: Q 0
Property taxes 190,132 181,396 0 4] 190,132 181,396
Other taxes 101,640 95,158 0 o] 101,640 85,158
Other 9,593 18,706 453 5,136 10,046 25,842
Total revenues 351,413 344,460 40,280 43,304 391,693 387,764
Frogram expenses:
General government 11,606 9,410 0 0 11,606 9,410
Public safety 92,357 95,922 o 0 92,357 95,922
Education 172,482 167,951 0 0 172,482 167,951
Judicial 9,590 11,545 0 0 9,590 11,545
Health 9,229 8,698 [+ 0 9,229 8,698
Social services 1,834 1,848 g 0 1,834 1,848
Community services 20,240 19,108 0 0 20,240 19,108
Economic development 1,281 1,505 0 0 1,281 1,505
Public facilities 16,647 14,534 [ o] 16,647 14,534
Water and sewer Q 0 25,146 23,618 25,146 23,618
Solid waste 0 1] 3,577 3,557 3,577 3,557
Other 18,581 21,278 10,725 10,663 29,306 31,541
Total expenses 353,847 351,799 39,443 37,838 393,285 389,637
Excess{deficit) before E=
transfers (2,434) {7,339) 832 5,466 {1,602) {1,873)
Net transfers 530 498 {530) (498} 9] 0
Change in net assets {1,904} {6.841) 302 4,968 {1,602) {1.873)
Net assets - beginning of year 275,337 282,178 124,102 115,134 399,439 401,312
Net assets - end of year 5 273,433 8§ 275,337 § 124,404 & 124,102 3 397,837 & 399,439
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Overall, the financial position of Charles County remained relatively constant compared to
FY2009. As shown on the table on page 8, total revenues increased from $388 million in FY2009 to 5392
millien in FY2010, an increase of less than 1%. Property and other taxes increased by $15.5 milfion,
however, due in part to State budget reductions for local government aid, other funding declined by
$13.3 million. Program revenues experienced a 5% increase approximating $4.5 million more than
FY2009.

Program expenses increased from $390 million in FY2009 to $393 million in FY2010. The
increase of $6.1 million was mainly due to Education which grew by $4.5 million. The second largest
increase was for Public Facilities which increased $3.8 million, however, abnormal snow storms
generated a $3 million increase in Public Facility expenditures compared to FY2009. tower revenues
from income tax and interest income combined with less State aid for roads and public safety resulted in
budget cuts to County programs which included a hiring freeze, an early retirement program, 10 days of
furlough, staff reductions from attrition, and layoffs.

Governmental activities. To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities {pg 18), some
additional explanation is given. Of particular interest is the format of this statement. You will notice
that expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported to the
right. The result is a Net (Expenses)/Revenue and Changes in Net Assets. The reason for this kind of
format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the County’s taxpayers. It
also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues, or if the function is self-
supporting through fees and grants, It is important to note that all taxes are classified as general
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

A decrease in net assets of $1.6 million was experienced when all funds are combined, as
indicated on page 19. Total expenditures of $396 million were partially offset by program related
service fees, grants, and other contributions of nearly $20 millien. The remaining $306 million in
expenditures were funded through non-program revenue sources, primarily property and income taxes.

Governmental-type activities, as expected, operated at a $305.5 million loss, primarily due to
Education and Public Safety. As depicted in the bar chart on page 10, Education and Public Safety
programs typically have little program revenue, and therefore, rely heavily upon tax revenues to fund
the operations. Education and Public Safety required approximately $253 million in non-program
revenue.

The County operates many programs on a fee for service basis (business-type activities) in order
to help keep the burden on the taxpayer down. Business-type activities account for $40.2 million of the
total $396 million expended, or approximately 10% of the total, and finished the fiscal year with an
operating loss of $387,349. Of that operating loss, $1.2 million was sustained in the Inspection & Review
Fund which had built up a healthy fund balance in prior years to offset the loss.
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activites (Year Ended June 30,
2010)
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Business-type octivities. The Water and Sewer Fund is cansidered a major fund for reporting purposes
For Fiscal Year 2010, the water user fee was increased by sixty-one cents per thousand gallons of water
consumed, and the sewer user fee was increased by thirty cents per thousand gallons of water
consumed, for a combined water and sewer user fee rate of $8.51 per thousand gallons of water
consumed. The combined rate increase was slightly above 12% and was needed to fund the increased
costs for labor and other operating costs.

The Solid Waste Fund is considered a major fund for reporting purposes. The County owns and
operates a landfill. The primary source of revenue is derived from tipping fees. The fee of $70 per ton
for commercial and residential refuse was unchanged compared to FY2009. The County recently
completed its third expansion of the existing landfill site to accommodate local county waste.

In conjunction with the landfill operation, the County also operates recycling and environmental
programs. The recycling operation helps keep reusable items out of the landfill, thus extending the life,
which, in turn, defrays the cost of the landfill and defers the need for additional sites. The recycling and
environmental programs are funded by an annual user fee of $68 assessed on each improved property
in the County, an increase of $5 compared to fiscal year 2009. Additional revenue is generated from the
sale of recyclable materials.

The Board of County Commissioners are committed to maintaining fow tax rates and adjusting
fees for services to preserve a self-supporting level. User fees are reviewed and changes are
recommended on a regular basis during the County’s budgeting process. There are many factors that
affect user fee revenue, ranging from weather conditions to citizen participation. For example,
unseasonably dry weather creates a greater demand for water, which in turn increases user fee
revenue

30
25

20

Millions

fra ¥ Expenses

15
Revenues

10

Water & Sewer Other

11
PDF compression, OCR, web optimization using a watermarked evaluation copy of CVISION PDFCompressor


http://www.cvisiontech.com/

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure ahd demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County’s financing requirements. n particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported ¢coembined
ending fund balances of $67.5 million, a decrease of $9.8 million in comparison with the prior year. The
general fund and capital projects fund reflected decreases of $6.1 and 56.2 for the fiscal year. The debt
service and special revenue funds increased $1.5 million and $875,000 respectively. The County’s
governmental fund balances at June 30, 2010 includes $1.5 million reserved for inventory and $13.7 for
capital outlay with the balance of $6.7 reserved in debt service and special revenue funds as indicated
on page 70. The governmental fund balances of the County that are designated and the largest
components include (1) $1.9 million for health insurance, (2) $11.7 million for infrastructure, (3) $4.9
million for CIP and cperations, and (4} $23.3 million as the policy target for bond rating. The un-
designated and un-reserved fund balance for the County at year end was $2.2 million. This amount can
be used for non-recurring items, emergencies or to offset potential State budget cuts in FY11 and
beyond.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Charles County Government. At the end of
the current fiscal year, reserved fund balance was $2.5 million, unreserved but designated fund balance
was $36.5 million, and unreserved and undesignated fund balance of $2.2 million for a total fund
balance of $41.2 miltion.

The Capital Project Fund experienced a decrease of $6.2 million during the current fiscal year.
The decrease in fund balance was primarily due to planned transfers of funds to the Debt Service Fund
and the General Fund. A transfer of $5.4 million to the Debt Service Fund was made to assist in the
payment of debt service associated with school construction. Those funds originated from developer
contributions that were reserved by the county for school construction. A Capital Project Fund transfer
of $6.1 million was also made to return surplus pay-go funds from completed capital projects back to
the General Fund. The remaining difference in fund balance is due to the timing of when capital project
bonds are issued and the spending of those bond funds based on the projects’ work-in-progress.

The fund balance of the County’s Debt Service Fund increased by $1.5 million during the current
fiscal year. This increase is due primarily to the early pay off of $1.1 million in a note receivable from
the Charles County Nursing Home. The early receipt of funds was in exchange for land and property
held by the County.
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Proprietary funds. Charles County’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $16.3
million. The unrestricted net assets for the County’s Solid Waste Fund was $8.4 million. Unrestricted
net assets of all proprietary funds were $22.8 million. There was a total increase in net assets for all
proprietary funds in the amount of $302,000. Other factors concerning the finances of all these funds
have already been addressed in the discussion of the County’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The FY2010 General Fund Operating Budget was adopted at $311 million with budget
amendments approved during the year that netted to a $4 million decrease and an amended budget of
$307 million. The extended period of the economic recession affected the County revenues in two
ways.

Early in the fiscal year the State of Maryland enacted budget cuts including reductions in state
aid for local jurisdictions in order to balance their budget. The County took immediate budget action by
reducing local government expenditure budgets by $5.3 million in November. Later in the fiscal year,
County income tax and interest income revenues were estimated to fall short of budget by nearly $3
million creating a second round of budget cuts equal to $2.8 million. Although many of the revenues
experienced declines, overall operating revenues completed the fiscal year flat compared to FY2009.
Fund transfers from the Capital Project Fund of $6.1 million and from a Special Revenue Fund of $700
thousand assisted in balancing the FY2010 General Fund budget.

Total expenditures increased by nearly $5 million compared to FY2009, including $3 million
more due to unexpected snow removal. Supplemental funding from FEMA of $1.6 million helped offset
the snow removal costs. The County met the State mandated funding effort known as Maintenance of
Effort, which provided the Board of Education nearly $7 million more in public school funding or 5%
greater than FY2009. Principal and interest on long term debt increased by $800 thousand as additional
bonds were issued to pay for new and improved infrastructure. Pay-as-you-go funding for capital
projects increased by nearly $500 thousand, while all other programs spent less than the FY2009 actual.

Despite a 2% increase in actual expenditures, the FY2010 Budget was originally adopted at $311
million. Actual spending was limited to $304.6 million. Formal budget cuts of $7.6 million significantly
offset the revenue shortfalls from the State and lower local revenues due to the recession. Two
separate budget reduction plans were established during the year to counter the revenue shortfalls,
therefore, savings were achieved throughout County government. The budget cuts included reduction
in authorized positions through attrition, layoffs, furloughs, and an early retirement incentive offering.
No direct public service levels were terminated. Significant snow removal costs due to a severe Winter
resulted in nearly $3.5 million in supplemental funds that were added to the budget, $1.6 million from
FEMA and $1.9 million from fund balance.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2010, amounts to $630.1 million {net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinervy and equipment,
vehicles, and infrastructure. The total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was slightly over 2% (a 1% increase for governmental activities and a 1% increase for
business-type activities)

Capital Assets
{net of depreciation)
June 30, 2010 and 2009
{amounts are presented in thousands)

Governmental Activites Business-type Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008
Land (not depreciated) 3 53,576 § 47,566 % 2,174 § 2,174 § 55,750 S 49,740
Construction in progress
{not depreciated} 133,785 184,186 40,618 79,891 174,403 264,077
Land improvements 6,867 5,621 4,648 4,854 11,516 10,475
Infrastructure 148,805 102,702 96,704 82,943 245,509 185,645
Buildings and improvements 71,852 60,985 10,346 10,616 82,198 71,601
Machinery and equipment 23,628 25,027 30,752 2,938 54,380 27,965
Vehicles 5,498 6,429 814 1,254 6,312 7,683

Total 444,011 432,516 186,057 184,670 630,068 617,186

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note 3 on pages 56-58 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had notes and bonds outstanding of
5327.7 million, which are backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

Cutstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Notes Payable
June 30, 2010 and 2009
(amounts are presented in thousands})

Governmental Activites Business-tvba Activities Totat
2010 2008 2010 2008 2010 2009
General obligationbonds 5 248,379 S 258,422 5 66,021 5 55,678 S 314,400 S 314,100
Notes payable 1,148 1,657 12,222 13,031 13,370 14,688
Total 249,527 260,079 78,243 68,709 327,770 328,788

The County’s total debt during the current fiscal year decreased by $1 million. The issuance of
bonds at favorable interest rates combined with the County’s strategic long term financial policy of
primary 15-year bond terms resulting in rapid pay down of debt, has provided the County with the
abtlity to issue new debt without a large negative fiscal impact

During the year, the County issued $36.1 million of general obligation bonds, of which $11.4
miltion are Taxable Build America Bonds
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The County continues to maintain an “AA” rating from Standard & Poor’'s. As of April 30, 2010,
Fitch Investors Service recalibrated and assigned the County a much coveted "AAA” rating. According to
the press release issued by Fitch, the rating reflects the County’s strong and expanding tax base,
sustained growth, robust local wealth and employment levels. Effective May 3, 2010, Charles County’s
“Aa2” rating from Moaody’s Investors Service was recalibrated to an “Aal" as part of its efforts to align
governments and corporations on the same rating scale. All three ratings led to a historically low
interest rate for Charles County’s bond sale in April 2010.

The County may issue general obligation and revenue bonds under existing authority conferred
by the Maryland General Assembly. As a Code Home Rule county, the County has aliso enacted public
local laws authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds. The County currently has $119,691,100
of general obligation bond authority.

State statutes limit the amount of general ohligation debt a governmental entrty may issue for
water, sewer, and solid waste infrastructure to ten percent of its total assessed valuation. This debt is
typically backed first by revenue honds from the various enterprise funds and secondly by the full faith
and credit of the County. The current debt limitation for Chartes County is $2 billion, which significantly
exceeds the County’s current outstanding general ohligation debt related to revenue honds. Additional
information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 on pages 64-68 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

#* The FY2011 General Fund Budget was adopted at $305,018,610. The budget was
adopted below the FY2010 adjusted budget level of $307,029,180.

W In FY2011, the County’s largest revenue source, Property Tax, was budgeted with an
increase of 3.3% compared to the FY2010 Adjusted Budget. The second largest revenue
source, Income Tax, is expected to remain flat. Other revenues are budgeted near or
below the FY2010 budget level with the exception of transfers from other funds.
Transfers are $6 million less than FY2010 reflecting the one-time nature of these
funding sources.

* Overall property tax revenue is estimated to increase by 3.3% despite lower property
values. In Maryland owner-occupied residential property taxes are limited by a tax
regulator known as the Homestead Tax Credit. The tax credit limits the increase to local
governiments’ property tax revenue during times of increasing assessments in the value
of the property. The tax credit also helps local governments during times of decreasing
assessments. Since the tax credit limits the increase in a tax bill, homeowners have
been paying taxes well below their actual assessed value, therefore, even in decreasing
assessment markets the tax liability continues to increase to meet the current tax
assessment level.

* Income tax revenue is budgeted 1% less than FY2010 due to the slow economic
recovery. The local tax rate remained the same.
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* Expense budgets were approved at the FY2010 level in order to balance the General
Fund budget. As in FY2010, the County met the State mandated funding requirement for
the public school education system known as the “Maintenance of Effort”, which
essentially provides the same level of funding from the prior year adjusted for student
enrollment growth. The largest increase in expenditures is a transfer of funds to the
Debt Service Fund of $3.6 million which will assist in the payment for borrowing costs
associated with public school construction.

These factors, as well as many others, were considered in preparing the County’s budget for
Fiscal Year 2011.

Reguests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Charles County’s finances for
all those with an interest in the County’s finances. Questions concerning any information provided in
this report should be addressed 1o:

Director of Fiscal and Administrative Services
Charles County Government

P.O. Box 2150

La Plata, MD 20646

Please visit our website at www.charlescounty.org
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

Governmental Business-type Total Prirnary Component
Activities Activitles Government Units
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents i 17,366,911 3 1,744,949 s 19,111,860 5 43,970,808
Shori-term investments 88,914,781 0 88,914,781 437,774
Other receivables 34,785,873 5,807,000 10,592,873 7,968,854
Notes receivable 0 300,812 300,812 o}
Excise tax receivable 31,563,768 o 31,563,768 0
Taxes receivable 2,41%,559 9 2,418,559 [t}
Internal bailances (32,185,562) 32,185,562 o} Q
Inventory 1,528,416 632,482 2,160,898 850,656
Other current assets 196,925 82,463 275,388 6,653,040
Restricted assets 46,122,534 122,273 46,244,807 0
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land 53,575,910 2,174,186 55,750,086 16,687,486
Construction in progress 133,784,963 40,618,204 174,403,167 9,221,764
Land improvements 6,866,753 4,648,832 11,515,645 2,305,286
Infrastructure 148,805,330 96,703,817 245,509,147 0
Buldings and improvements 71,851,553 10,345,301 §2,197.854 231,591,094
Machinery and equipment 23,628,009 30,751,523 54,379,532 7,996,099
vehicles 5,498,099 813,549 6,312,048 0
Total assets 634,723,822 226,932,413 861,656,235 327,682,861
LIABILITES.
Accounts payable 7,597,921 1.982.243 9,580,164 9,475,731
Accrued expenses 3,514,382 1,394,931 4,909,313 26,167,651
Unearned revenue 35,839,241 366,531 36,205,772 2,505,974
Other Kabilitles 11,175,614 745,933 11,921,607 283,207
Moncurtent Habiditles:
Due within one year 29,159,679 7.162,760 36,322,439 730,000
Due in maore than one year 268,366,048 89,029,755 357,395,803 66,736,606
Net deferred bond issue premiums 5,638,415 1,845,925 7,484,340 "]
Total liabilities 361,291,300 102,528,138 463,819,438 105,899,169
NET ASSETS:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 285,447,650 101,483,715 387,831,365 267.801.729
Restricted for:
Capital projects 14,535,191 0 14,535,191 0
Public housing 3,295,119 o 3,295,119 o
Public safety 935,536 0 535,536 ¢
COther purposes 2,481,170 ] 2,481,170 0
Unrestricted (34,262, 144) 22,920,560 {11,341,584) {46,018,037)
Total net assets 5 273,432,522 5 124,404,275 5 397,836,797 $ 221,783,652
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF ACTIMITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Program Reventigs

Oparating Capital
Charges for Grants ahd Grants and
Functions/Programs Expanses Servicas Contributions Centributions
PRHVIARY GOVERNMENT-

Governmental activities
Legislative Sn 1,939,759 % I [+ o
Judretal 5,589,759 73,114 307,669 ¢
Law 896,496 0 o 0
General government 11,602,410 1.573.048 9,646,686 Q
Elections 535,401 0 ¢ g
Fublic safety 92,357,073 6,054,547 3,542,385 69,596
Planning and growth management 3,736,711 2,466,319 115,437 30,527
Health 9,128,755 215,169 3,142,972 1]
Social services 1,833,744 0 o] )
Community services 20,239,786 1,889,243 14,184,130 3,496
Pubiic facilities 16,646,652 652,970 ¢ -3,528,279
Econamic developmeit 1,280,857 0 14,291 Q
Edutation 172,482,312 2,032,142 g 0
Conservation of natural resources 354,157 o o] 0
interest expense on long term debt 10,922,423 0 o] a
Total governmental actvities 353.846.295 14,957,552 31,457,586 3,631.898

Bussnass-type activities:
Water and sewer 25,146,157 24,940,407 1} 982,611
Inspaction and review 3,370,382 2,123,971 v} o
County parks 867,458 758,158 q q
Recreation 3,045,137 2,682,359 0 24,474
Solid waste 3.577.336 4,583,739 o ¢
Enwironmental sarvices 3,312,126 3.565.524 ¢ 32,898
vending machines 129,239 133,074 o 0
Total business-type activitias 39,447,875 38,787,232 Q 1,035,983
Total grimary government 3 393,294,170 5 53,744,784 & 31,457,586 4.671.851

COMPONENT UNITS:

foard of Education of Charles County, Maryland 375,808,638 7.043,453 88,462,485 17,170,266
Board of Library Trustees fay Charles County 4,334,837 153.998 45,841 Q
Total component units s 3180143475 § 7.202,4531 % 88,512,326 17,170,266

General 7evenueas:
Taxes.
Local property taxes
Local taxes - Extise

Local taxes - Admissions & Amusement

Lacal taxes - Recordation
Local taxes - Hotel/Motel
Income taxes
State shared

County and state appropnat ons

Other Income

Interest and investment sarnings

Net transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Changein net assets
Met assets - baginning of year

Met assats - end of yesr

PDF compression, OCR, web optimization using’4 Wititifdfked evaluation copy of CVISION PDFCompressor


http://www.cvisiontech.com/

Net [Exp JR and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government
Business-
Governmental type Component

Activities Activitres Total Units
$ (1,939,759) 5 o 5 {1.929,759) s 0
18,708,976) 0 {8.708.876) [}
{896,496} 8 {896,456} 1
{381,676} 0 {381,678} (1
(535,401} 0 {535,401) &
{82,690,535) i {82,690,535) 0
{1.120,428} o (1,120,428} o
{5,870,608} 0 (5,870,608) 0
{1,833,744) L (1,833,744) 0
{4.162,917) R {3,162,917) k]
{12.465,403) o (12,465,403 0
{1,266.566) o (1,266,566} 0
(170,450,170} ¢ (170,450,170) 0
{554,157} ] [554.157) 0
(10,922.423) a [10,922.433) 0
{303,793,259) 0 (303,793, 259) 4
8 776,861 776,861 0
& {1:246.411} (1.246,411) 0
o {109,340} (109,340} [
a {338,304) {338,204} 0
8 1.006,403 1,006,403 0
0 286,295 286,296 0
0 3,835 3,835 ]
0 279,340 379,340 0
{303, 799,253} 379,340 (303,419,913} i
0 [ 0 {263,132,434}
0 0 0 {4,125,998)
0 0 (267,258,432}
190,131,537 B 150,131,537 0
4,154,235 o 4,154,235 0
804,476 o 204,476 o
59,500,396 o 9,500,396 o
958,717 0 958,717 [\
85,784,762 o 85,784,762 0
437492 0 437492 0
0 0 0 253,055,773
5,695,001 376,834 6,071,835 170,914
2,898,008 75.594 3,973,602 66,294
530,182 (530,182} [a} 0
301,894,806 (77,754} 301,817,052 253,292,981
(1,904,453} 1,526 {1.602,867) {13,963,562)
275,336,975 124,102,682 399,439,664 235,747,254
$ 273,432,522  § 124404275 4§  397.836.797 5 221,783,692
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Other receivables

Excise tax recetvable
Taxes recewable

Due from other funds’
ventory

Other assets

Restricted assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures
Defarred revenue

Due to other funds

Other liabilities

Payable from restricted assets

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reservad fund balance
Unreserved:
Designated fund balance
Undesignated fund balance {deficit)
Sub-total Unreseryed fund balance

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities & fund balances
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 26, 2010

Other Total
Generat Capital Debt Governmental Governmental

Fund Projects Seryice Funds Funds
5 14,748,958 % o % 0 2,617,953  § 17,366,911
£8,914,781 0 0 0 88,914,781
30,089,827 1,274,187 7.236 3,414,623 34,785,873
0 ] 31,563,768 o 31,563,768
2:419,559 0 i} 0 2,419,559
0 24,645,679 126,205 7,424,541 32,196,425
1,528,416 0 0 0 1,528,416
196,763 0 v} 163 196,926
1,965,285 0 44,157,249 0 45,122,534
5 139,853,58% & 25,919,866 § 75,854,458 13,457,280 5 255,095,193
3 2,224,958 5 3,670,567 S 0 1,702,396 S 7,597,921
2,768,794 0 0 5,455 2,774,249
21,672,724 2,645,870 75,715,387 1,631,016 107,664,997
63,572,556 0 0 809,431 £4.381,987
6,474,099 o 0 2,736,230 9,210,329
1,965,285 0 0 0 1,965,285
98,678,416 6,316,437 75,715,387 6,884,528 187,594,768
2,531,035 13,387,539 139,071 6,322,752 22,380,357
36,482,307 6,215,890 o 250,000 42,948,197
2171831 0 0 0 2,171,831
38,654,138 6,215,850 0 250,000 45,120,028
41,185,173 19,603,429 139,071 6,572,752 67,500,425
5 139,863,589 & 25,919,866 §  75.854.458 13,457,280 & 255,095,193
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2010

Total Governmental Fund Balance 5 67,500,425
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement’

of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 444,010,617

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefere are not
reported in the funds:

Bonds payabla {248,379.002)
Loans and notes payable {76.845)
Capital leases pavable (4,098,081}
Landfill closure costs {1,070.840)
Health insurance claims {740,138)
Net pension obligation {410.212)
Net OPEB obligation {30,014,542)
Unearned revenue 65,825,756
Unamortized deferred charges {5.638,413)

Compensated absences which are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds {12,476,203)

Net assets of Governmental Activities [ 273,432,522
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF AEVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cther Total
General Capital Deht Govemmental Governmental
Fund Projects Service Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes - local property & 172986438 5 o 3§ a 3 12,145,099 190,131,537
Taxes - nepme 86,513,318 ¢ a a 86,513,316
Tanes - Excise 0 [+ 4,154,235 0 4,154,235
Taxes - Admissions and A t 804.476 o o 804476
Taxes - Recordation §,500,396 [ 0 9,500,398
Tanes - Hotel/Motel 958,717 0 0 958,717
Taxes - state shared 437,492 0 0 0 437,492
Charges for services 6,950,804 2,004,000 0 4,750,439 15,705,262
Intergavernmental 3,304,549 11,406,254 0 20,378,681 35,089,484
Interest incame 339,568 4] 3,536,698 21,742 3,898,008
Other incame 2.332,226 3] 4,100,177 514,380 6,947,293
Total revenues 289,127,982 13,410.254 11,791,110 37,510,860 352,140,216
Expenchtures:
Current.
Education 156,434,735 6,579,357 o 1,190,534 164,204,676
Public safety 71,598,070 659,195 a 15.578.650 87,835,915
Other general govemment 19,226,752 0 1,218 o 19.227970
Pubhic faciltres 19,171,226 9,353,461 0 o} 28,524,687
financlal adrministration 8.016.417 0 0 1] 8.016.417
Community services 3,558,418 19.054 0 17,130,059 20,707,531
Judhcazl 3,099.199 5,269,775 0 1,180,816 9,549,790
Flanning and growth management 1,137,525 454,063 0 194,675 3,796,263
Health 3,145,535 1.729.79¢ 9 3,181,572 8,158.197
Econamic development 1281413 14 0 14,291 1,295,704
Social services 1.038.60% 0 ] 795,055 1,833,744
Legistative 1,815,035 o 0 3,170 1.820,205
Law 884,268 4] 0 1] §84.268
Conservation of natural resources: 551.41% 1] 1] 0 551,419
Elections 535,143 ¢ 0 o] 535,143
Dabt service:
Principal 1] ¢ 11,243,405 Q 11,242,409
Interast B.487,255 "] 4,435,168 0 10.922.423
Total expenditures 299,982,099 24,074,685 15,679,795 39,371,472 379,107,761
Excass {dafioency] of revenues
over {Under) expenditures [10,854,107) (10,664,441} 13,888, 685) 11,560,312) (26,967,545}
Other finanting sources (uses).
Issuance of deht 21,497 15,000,000 0 0 15,621,457
Premium on issuance of debt 1.353.311 0 0 0 1.358,311
Bond Proceeds from debt refunding 4,853,935 0 Q 1] 4,853,935
Defeased Bonds {5, 276,540) 0 Q Q (5,276,540}
Transfers in 7,395.000 1,025,000 5.437,700 3,154,508 17,012,208
Transfers out {4,229,698) {11,532,900} 0 {719,428) 116,482,026}
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,722,505 4,492,100 5437700 2435080 17,087,383
Net change in fund balance (6,131.602) 6,172,341} 1,549,015 874,768 19,880,160)
Fund balance {deficit} - Deginning of year 47,316,775 25.775.770 {1,408,544) 5,697,984 77,380,585
Fund balanc¢e {deficit) - and of year 5 41,185173  $ 19,603,423 &S 139,071 5 6,572,752 67,500,425
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REYENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Net change in fund balance - Governmental Funds 5 {2.880.360)

Amaounts reported for governmental activities in the statemant
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report Capital outlays as expenditures,
However, in the statement of activities, the cast of Capital
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. 26,386,169

Governmental funds only réport the dispasal of assets to the extent
proceeds are received from tha sale. n the statement of activities,
a gain or loss is reported for each disposal. This is the cost of the
assets disposed |ess accumulated depreciation. {141,092}

Governmental funds do not repart centributions from developers and other
sources. However, in the government-wide statements contributions are
reported as an increase to capital assets. 1,720,456

Governmental funds report the issuance of debt as income and the 7,605,207
repayment of debt as expenditures  However, in the government-
wide statements, debt and repayment of debt 1s reported as
a reduction of a [ong-term liabifity.

Governmenta! funds report costs associated with the issuance of
debt as revenues and expenditures. However, in the
government-wide statéments,these revenues and expenses
are amortized in the statermnent of activities. 367.480

Governmental funds report revenues based on the availability of
of the funds. Howevar, in the government-wide statements
revenues are recorded based on collectibility. {271,057}

Certain expenses reported in the staternent of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Depraciation expense (16,471,438)
Amortization of deferred charges {596,534}
Compensated absences (786.427)
Self-insurance Claims- IBNR {175.618)
Net pension obligation 17,395
Net OPER obligation {9.678,874)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 5 {1,904,453)

See accompanying notes.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF MET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010
Business-type activities
Water and Sewer Solid Other
Fund Waste Fund Proprietary Funds Tatal
ASSETS-
Current assets,
Cash and cash equvalents $ 200§ 2,000 5 1,742,743 $ 1,744,949
Other receivables 5,111,709 575,820 119.471 5,807,000
Notes receivable 300,812 0 0 300,812
Due from ather funds 19,911,901 13,825,058 3,069,605 36,806,564
Inventary 576,081 0 56.401 £32.482
Gther current assets 2,559 o] 79,903 82,4652
Total current assets 25,903,262 14,402,878 S,068,129 45,374,269
Noncurrent assets:
Net capital assets 162,199,686 11,195,997 12,661,189 186,056,872
Restricred agsets 0 122,273 1} 122,273
Tota! noncurrent assets 162,199,686 11,318,270 12,661,189 186,179,145
Total assets 188,102,248 25,721,148 17,729,318 231,553,414
LIABILITIES.
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,532,391 51,856 397,996 1,982,243
Accrued expenses 1,138,338 26,183 230,410 1,394,931
Due to other funds 0 0 4,621,002 4,621,002
Unearned revenue 1,888 i] 354,643 366,531
Current pertion of long-term debt 6,285,802 47,995 828,963 7,162,760
Total current labilities 8,958,419 126,034 6,443,014 15,527,467
Moncurrent liabilities:
Other liabillties 624,083 121,900 o] 745,503
Bonds payable 52,035,120 o 8,553,112 60,588,232
Net deferred bond 1ssue premiums 1,665,852 [4,185) 180,251 1,845,925
Long-term debt 12,406,139 5,349,117 289,527 18,044,783
Net pension obligation 92,035 13,955 25,884 131,874
Net OPEB obligation 3,351,564 528,481 757,272 4,637,327
Capital lzase obligation 5,361,098 72,708 193,732 5,627,538
Total noncurrent liabilities 75,539,908 6,081,986 9,999,778 91,621,672
Totai liakilities 84,498,327 6,208,020 16,442,792 107,149,139
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 87,263,818 11,095,997 3,123,900 101,483,715
Unrestricted 16,340,803 8,417,131 (1,837,374) 22,920,560
Total net assets 5 103,604,621 5 19,513,128 5 1,286,526 S 124,404,275

PDF compression, OCR, web optimization using a

Seaa

Walermarked evaluation copy of CVISION PDFCompressor


http://www.cvisiontech.com/

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS.
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Business-type activities

Water and Sewer Salid Other
Fund Waste Funad Proprietary Funds Total
Cperating revenues:
Charges for servites 24,940,407 4,583,739 9,256,011 5 38,780,157
Other income 304,666 2,797 69,371 376,834
Tota! operating revenues 25,245,073 4,586,536 8,325,382 39,156,991
Operating expenses:
Personnel services 10,266,004 1,960,867 4,644,283 16,871,154
Utilities 3,569,600 50,492 410,992 4,031,084
Repairs and maintenance 675,190 114,050 251,730 1,040,970
Insurance costs 333,520 14,380 55,769 403,669
Indirect costs 384,000 184,000 20,770 588,770
Supplies 1,321,850 166,307 589,104 2,077,801
Contract services 359,300 77395 3,273,133 3,709,828
Other operating costs 1,043,089 310,887 346,931 1,700,907
Depreciation 5,650,377 697,830 752,695 7,100,902
Total operating expenses 23,602,970 3,576,708 10,345,407 37,525,085
Operating income {loss) 1,642,103 1,009,828 {1,020,025) 1,631,906
NonoPerating revenues (expenses).
Interest income 37,522 24,653 13,419 75,594
Imtergavernmental 582,611 0 57,372 1,039,983
Interest expense (2,309,876} {528) {378,975) {2,689,479)
Gain on disposal of capital assets 0 0 7075 7.075
Total nonoperating revenues {losses) (1,289,743} 24,025 {301,109) {1,566,827)
treorme before transfers 352,360 1,033,853 {1,321,134) 65,079
Donations - noncash transactions 766,689 0 0 766,689
Transfers in o] 0 69,618 69,618
Transfers out 0 {599,800} 0 {599,800}
Change in net assets 1,119,049 434,053 {1,251,516} 301,586
Net assets - beginning of year 102,485,572 19,079,075 2,538,042 124,102,689
Net assets - end of year 103,604,621 19,513,128 1,286,526 S 124,404,275

ing ngtes.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPARIETARY FUNDS
YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2010

Business-type activities

Water and Sewer Solid Other
Fund Waste Fund Froprietary funds Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 5 25,172,477 s 4,419,986 s 9,354,216 % 38,946,679
Cash paid to suppivers {8.316,161) {290,255} {4.765,296) (13,472,312)
Cash paid to employees (10,053,178} (2.383.834) {4,691,982) [17,128,994)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,803,138 1,645,857 {103,562 8,345,373
Cash flows fram investing activities:
Interest received 37,522 24,653 . 13,415 75,594
Met cash provided by investing activties,. 37,522 24,653 13,419 75,594
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Intergovernmental 982,611 0 57,372 1,035.883
Transfers in {out) 0 {599,800} 69,618 {530.182)
Recelpts from interfund |0ans {8,924,647) {1,219,509) 1.118.348 {9,025,308]
Repayments of interfund loans 0 0 310.975 310,975
Met cash used by {used In) nancapital financing activities 17,942,036) {1,819,30%) 1,556,813 {8,204,532)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 15,139,080 0 1,151,985 16,291,065
Proceeds from new loan 434,000 100,000 39,900 573,900
Principal payments on bonds payable {4,662,708) a (629,747} {5,292,455)
Principal payments on capital lease cbligations {593,959} 0 {152,405} {746.364)
Principal payments on kyans [808,031) a 15L,972) (861,003)
Interest pad {2,309,876) {628} (378,975) {2.689,479)
Praceeds from disposal of assets 0 0 pRerl) 7.075
Cash paid for cagital expenses 16,096,130) 49 387 (902479} {6,949,222)
Net cash used v capital and related financing activities 1,101.376 148,759 {916,618) 333,517
Net ncrease in cash and cash equivalents a 0 549,952 549,952
Cash and cash efuivalents - beginning of year 200 2,000 1,192,757 1,194,997
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 5 00 5 2,000 E 1,742,743 % 1,744,949
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR EMDED JUNE 30, 2010

= ] Busness-type actimties
Water and Sewer Solid Other
Fund . Wwaste Fund Proprietary Funds Total

Reconciiat on of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operdting income 4 1,642,103 ¥ 1,009,528 5 1020025} & 1,631,906
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activitres'

Depreciation 5,650,377 697.830 752,695 7,100,902
Increase [decrease] in compensation-ralated

hiabiiities included in [ong-term detit 63,388 [19,973) (48.318) 4,902
Intrease in landfill tlosure liabilities included

11 long-term debt 0 0 o 0
{Increase) decrease in other receivables {110,993) (166,550} [26.944) (294,487
{Increase) decrease in notes recelvable 38,928 1] 3] 38,528
{Increase) detrease in inventories 5,695 0 347 9,042
{Increase) decrease in gther current assets {899} o] 26,135 25,236
{Increase) decrease in restncted assets 0 1422y 0 1422)
{Increase) decrease 1n deferred bond issue costs (765,767) G 0 [765.767)
Increase (decrease] in secounts payaisie {1,522,011) (14,680} {78,300} {1.615,001)
increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 149,437 4,351 516 154,404
Increase [decrease) in other habilities 765,767 49 0 755,816
Increase (decrease] In Net Pension Obigation (7,118) {1,121} 4,018 {4,221)
Increase (decrease] in Net OFEB Obligation 891,761 136.555 230,336 1,258,692
Increase (decrease! in deferred revenue [531) 0 45,778 45,247

Met cash provided by operating activities H 6,803,138 § 1.645,897 H (103,662) § 8,345,373

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Water and Sewer Solid COther
Fund Waste Fund Pronrietary Funds Tatal
Berrowing under capital lease 434,000 100,000 39,900 573,900
Non-cash donations - developers 766,639 0 0 766,689
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

Pension and OPEB
Trust Funds

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,445,244
interest receivable 111,844
Totat current assets 3,557,088

Investments at fair value

8ond mutual funds 52,204,106
Equity securities 148,892,161
Total Investments 201,056,267
Total assets 204,653,355
LIABILTIES:

Accrued expenses ) {48.568)

NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits 5 204,604,787

See accompanying notes,
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Pension and OPEB
Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer contributions S 14,502,323
Employee contributions 4,226,852
Total contributions 18,729,215
Investment earnings:
interest 5,776,401
Net change in fair value of investments 17,625,011
Total investment earnings 23,401.412
Less investment expenses {1,501,296)
Net investment earnings ' 21,900,116
Total additions 4Q,629,331
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits paid to members 8,235,662
Administrative costs 816,118
Total deductions 5,055,781
Changes in net assets 31,573,550
Net assets - beginning of year 173,031,237
Net assets - end of year 5 204,604,787

See accompanying notes.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS QF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2010

Board of Education Board of Library
of Charles Trustees for
County, Maryland Charles County Total
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivaients % 43,877,924 5 92,834 s 43,970,508
Short-term investments 0 437,774 437,774
Atcounts receivable 7,959,202 9,652 7,968,854
tnventory 850,656 0 850,656
Qther assets 6,616,895 36,145 5,653,040
Capital assets
Lang 15,687,486 o 16,687, 4BE
Construction in progress 9,221,764 0 9,221,764
Land improvements 2,303,286 0 2,305,286
Buildings 231,591,094 0 231,591,094
Machinery and equipment 7,440,544 555,555 7,556,099
Total assets 326,550,851 1,132,010 327,682,861
LIABILITIES.
Actounts payable 9,454,283 21,448 9,475,731
Accrued expenses 25,843,230 324,421 26,167,651
Unearned réevenue 2,505,974 v, 2,505,974
Other lizbllities 283,207 o] 283,207
Nan-current habilities:
Due within gne year 730,000 a 730,000
Due in more than one yaar 65,737,978 398,628 66,736,606
Total llabilities 104,554,672 1,344,497 105,895,169
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 267,246,174 555,555 267,801,729
Unrestricted assets {45,249,995) {768,042} {46,018,037}
Total net assets S 221,996,179 S {212,487} s 221,783,692
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THE COUNTY COMMISSICNERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTMITIES
COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Program Revenues

Operat'ng Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs' Expenses Services Contributions Cantributions
COMPONENT UNITS: )
Board of Education of Charies County. MD $ 375,808,638 5 7,043,453 5 88,462,485 13 17,170,266
Board of Library Trustees for Charles County 4,334,837 158,998 45,841 0
Total component units 5 380,143,475 % 7,202,451 s 88,512,326 5 17,170,266

General revenues:
County and state appropriations
Other income
Intarest and investment earnings
Miscellanegus
Total general revenues and transfers

Change #n net assets
Met assets - beginning of the year

Net assets - end of year

See accOmpanying
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Net [Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government
Board of Educaton Board of Library
of Charles Trustees for
County, Maryland Charles County Total
5 (263,132,434} 5 0 5 (263,132,434}
0 (4,125,998} {4,125,998)
{263,132,434} {4,125,998) (267,258,432}
249,362,908 3,692.863 253,055,773
0 0 0
54,828 1,466 66,294
131,192 41,611 170,914
249,558,528 3,735,942 253,292,981
(13,573,506} {390,056) (13,963,562}
235,569,685 177.56% 235,747,254
5 221,886.179 5 {212,487 5 221,?835692
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

Charles County, Maryland (the County) was created by order of council on May 10,
1658. The County operates under the Maryland Code Home Rule form of Government
Both the executive and the legislative functions of the County are vested in the elected five-
member Board of Commissioners of Charles County, Maryland (County Commissioners}.
The County provides various services to its citizens including public safety, health and social
services, parks and recreation, public transportation, public works, economic development
and general administrative services.

The County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with US. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to state and local government units as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB}. The accompanying
financial statements include those of the Charles County Government {the primary
government} and its component units. Component units are legally separate entities that
are included in the County’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operating
or financial relationships with the County. The criteria for including organizations as
component units with the County’s reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement 14 The
Financial Reporting Entity and modified by GASB Statement 39 Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, include whether:

» The organization is legally separate,

¢ The County Commissioners appoint a voting majority of the organization’s board,

¢ The County Commissioners have the ability to impose their wilt on the organization,

e The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the
County,

¢ The organization is fiscally dependent on the County.

Based on the application of these criteria, the following organizations are considered
component units of the Charles County Government. Their financial data is discretely
presented in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements. A Combining
Statement of Net Assets and a Combining Statement of Activities for the component units
are also provided. Each discretely presented component unit has a June 30 year end.

The Board of Education of Charles County, Maryland (the Board of Education} is a
legally separate organization created by Maryland state law to operate the County’s public
school system. Management of the County’s schools is under the control of the Board of
Education, with the final decision-making authority held by the State Board of Education.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

The members of the Board of Education are elected by the residents of Charles County
every four years. The Board of Education is financially accountable to the Charles County
Government because the Board of Education’s annual budget is subject to approval of the
elected County Commissioners. The Board of Education is presented as a governmental
fund type. The County provided $145,093,200 in operating funds and $8,486,562 in capital
funding to the Board of Education during fiscal year 2010.

The Board of Library Trustees for Charles County, Maryland (the Library) is a legally
separate entity under Maryland state law. The Library’s Trustees are appointed by the
Governor of Maryland and oversee the day-to-day management of the Library. The Library’s
budget is subject to the approval of the elected County Commissioners. The Library is
presented as a governmental fund type. The County provided $1,923,500 in operating funds,
to the Library during fiscai year 2010.

Complete financial statements of the discretely presented component units: caty be
obtained directly from their respective administrative offices:

Board of Education of Charles County, Maryland
Assistant Superintendent of Finance

Business Administration and Technology

P.O. Box 2770

La Plata, MD 20646

Board of Library Trustees of Charles County, Maryland
2 Garrett Avenue
La Plata, MD 206456

B. Basic Financial Statements

The County’s basic financial statements include government-wide financial statements
(reporting on the County as a whole), fund financial statements {reporting on the County as
a whole with an emphasis on the most significant funds}, and fiduciary financial statements
(reporting on the County's pension funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
The County’s public safety, health and social services, some parks and recreation, public
transportation, public works, economic development and general administrative services
are classified as governmental activities. Business-type activities rely significantly on fees
and charges for support. The County’s water and sewer Operations, solid waste
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

management operations, environmental services {recycling), vending commissions, White
Plains golf course, recreation and development services are classified as business-type
activities.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. The government-wide financial statements
focus more on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change in the County’s
net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-
type activities columns are {a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and {b]
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt
and obligations. The County’s net assets are reperted in three parts: (1) invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; (2) restricted net assets; and (3) unrestricted net assets. Net
assets should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on the net asset’s use are
either externally imposed by creditors (such as thru debt covenants), granters, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

The net assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and the
restrictions on their net asset use. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, the County utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities first,
then unrestricted reseurces as they are needed.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of
each of the County’s functions and business-type activities, The functions are also
supported by general government revenues (property tax, income tax, certain
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits, and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, gperating
grants and capital grants. Program revenues include {1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and (2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Pregram revenues must be
directly associated with the function of a business-type activity. The operating grants
column indicates operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants,
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. The net costs (by function or
business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenues (property tax, income tax,
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.), which are not properly included among
program revenues.

The County has an indirect cost allocation plan authorized under OMB Circular A-87,
which it uses (when applicable and allowed) to charge costs to special revenue (grant)
programs and proprietary funds. The federal guidelines state that indirect costs are eligible
for reimbursement provided they are necessary for the efficient conduct of the grant or
contract and provided specific costs identified are not restricted by federal law or
regulation. As required, the County received an annual central services allocation plan and
indirect cost rate proposal prepared for the past fiscat year by Cost Plans Plus, LLC. As a
result, the County uses that plan in developing cost-based fees, rates, user charges and
overhead recoveries from other taxing entities, authorities and enterprise funds

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements, Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures/expenses.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the
gavernmental or business-type activities categories. GASB 34 sets forth minimum criteria
for the determination of major funds. The criterion used by the County is based on the
percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses by fund category and
then the governmental and enterprise funds combined. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single column.

1. Governmental Funds:
The measurement focus of the governmental fund financial statements s the
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and

balances of financial resources) rather than changes in fund balances. The following is a
description of the governmental funds of the County:
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

a. General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The General Fund is always considered a major fund.

b. Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities {other than those financed by
business-type/proprietary funds). The Capital Projects Fund is a major fund.

c. Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of certain funds for the
periodic payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. The Debt Service
fund is a major fund.

d. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The
Special Revenue Funds of the County are non-major funds.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is the determination of operating income,
changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting
principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a
description of the proprietary funds of the County:

Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity {a) is financed with debt
that is solely secured by a pledge of net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that
the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and
charges, or (¢} establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to cover
similar costs. The Water and Sewer Fund qualifies as a major fund and is presented
separately. The County also has elected to present separately the Solid Waste Fund for
consistency as it may qualify as a major fund one year and fali just below the next. All
other enterprise funds are non-major and their data is combined into a single
aggregated presentation,

3. Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others
and therefore are not available to support County programs. The reporting focus for
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 20, 2010

fiduciary funds is on net assets and changes in net assels, and accounting principles used are
similar to proprietary funds.

The County’s fiduciary and pension trust funds account for the retirement benefits for
the Charles County Maryland Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan, the Charles County Pension
Plan, the Volunteer Fireman/EMS Associations LOSAP plan, and the OPEB Trust plan. Since,
by definition, these assets are held for the benefit of a third party (pension participants) and
cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not
incorporated into the government-wide statements. They are presented in the fiduciary
fund financial statements.

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of
the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied. The measurement
focus identifies which transactions should be recorded.

Basis of Accounting

a. Accrual Basis — Both governmental and business type activities are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting in the government-wide financial statements and
the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

b. Modified Accrual Basis — The governmental fund financial statements are
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e. both
measurable and available. “Measureable” means knowing or able to reasonably
estimate the amount. “Available” means collectible within the current period or soon
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers
revenues to be available if they are collected with 60 days after year end. Property
taxes, income taxes, highway user taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be

a1
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

measurable and available only when cash is received by the County. Expenditures
{including capital outlay) are recorded when the related liability is incurred. However,
debt service expenditures {principal and interest), as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when due.

iMeasurement Focus

In the government-wide financial statements, both governmental and business-type

activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined below
in ltem b.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the “curremt financial resources”
measurement focus or the “economic resources” measurement focus 15 used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement
focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating
income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All
assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activities are
reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.
D. Financial Statement Amounts
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The County has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, petty cash,
demand deposits, and short-term securities with an original maturity of three months or
less at time of purchase.

2. Investments:
Investments hetd by the County, including the pension funds, are stated at fair value.

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at fiscal year-end or best available estimate. Alfl
investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.
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3, Receivables:

All trade, excise and property tax receivables are reported at fair value. Estimated
unbilled revenues from the Water and Sewer Fund are recognized at the end of each fiscal
year on a pro-rata basis. The estimated amount is based on billings during the month
following the close of the fiscal year. Taxes, special assessments, utility charges and accrued
interest are deemed collectible in full. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien when
levied on July 1 of each fiscal year. The taxes are payable without interest by September 30.

All property tax revenue is recognized in compliance with NCGAI-3 (Revenue
Recognition-Property Taxes), which states that such revenue is recoded when it becomes
measurable and available. Available means due, or past due, and receivable within the
current period and collected no fonger than 60 days after the close of the current period.
Revenue relating to receivables which have not been collected within sixty days after the
fiscal year-end has been reclassified from property tax revenues to deferred revenues, or
unearned revenue.

4. Inter-fund Transactions:

The following is a description of the basic types of inter-fund transactions made during
the year and related accounting policies:

a: Transactions for services rendered or facilities provided — these transactions are
recorded as revenues in the receiving fund and expenditures in the disbursing fund.

b. Transactions to reimburse a fund for expenditures made by it or for the benefit
of another fund — these transactions are recorded as expenditures in the disbursing
fund and as reductions of expenditures in the receiving fund.

c. Transactions to shift revenues or contributions from the fund budgeted to
receive them to the fund budgeted to expend them ~ these transactions are recorded as
transfers in and out.

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due (to) from other funds.” Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”
and are eliminated.
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5. Inventories:.

Inventories of the County, consisting of expendable supplies held for the County’s use,
are valued at the Average Cost Method. inventories in all funds are initialty recorded in an
inventory account and recognized as expenditures/expenses when consumed.

6. Prepaid Items:

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements using
the allocation method

7. Restricted Assets:

Cash deposits are held for construction escrow bonds, inmates at the Detention Center,
a County Attorney escrow, a State’s Attorney Restitution bank account, and various lease
deposits held are all restricted and being held in Governmental Funds. In addition, certain
debt proceeds and certain resources set aside for their repayment in the Debt Service Fund,
are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited and they
are maintained in separate accounts. In the Solid Waste Management Fund, bonds are held
for commercial credit customers of the landfill operation in a fully refundable interest-
bearing bank account.

8. Capital Assets:

Capital assets are reported in applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
County as assets with an original, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Both the Board of Education and Library {component
units) define capital assets as assets having an initial individual cost of more than $1,000 and
estimated useful life in excess of one year. For the Library, books and audio visual materials
with a useful life greater than one year are capitalized and are valued and depreciated using
the group method. For the primary government and component units, donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Normal
maintenance and repair costs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend
assets’ lives are not capitalized by the County or the component units.
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Significant outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as Construction in
Progress while projects are being constructed. Projects are not depreciated until completed
or substantially completed and available for use.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government and the component units are

depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Charles County Government

Buildings 30 years
improvements 10 -30 years
Water and sewer systems 30 -50 years
Infrastructure 10 -50 years
Machinery and equipment 5 -10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computers and software 3 -5 vyears
Other infrastructure 10 -50 years

The Board of Education

Building s and improvements 30 years
Land improvements 10 years
Furniture and aquipment 5-10 years
The Library

Leasehold improvements 15 -39 year$
Furniture and equipment 7 years
Vehicles and Computer Equipment 5 years
Books and audio visual materials 3 years

9, Net Assets/Fund Equity:

in the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and is
displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the

outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets.
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b. Restricted net assets — consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use
either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (2} law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

C. Unrestricted net assets — all other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“rastricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

In the fund financial statements, equity is classified as fund balante for governmental
funds. Further classifications are as follows:

a. Reserved Fund Balance — represents amounts that have been legally restricted by
outside parties for specific purposes and are not available for appropriation.

b. Unreserved Fund Balance — represents. amounts available for budgeting future
operations.

1. Designated Fund Balance — represents tentative management plans for utilizing
resources in the subsequent year's budget for financing specific activities and to
fund deficits in other funds. These designations are subject to change.

2. Undesignated Fund Balance — represents. the remaining fund balance that is
available for use.

Equity in the proprietary fund statements is classified the same & in the government-
wide statements.

10. Cempensated Absences:

Employees of the County earn annual leave, compensatory time and sick leave in varying
amounts. it is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
annual leave, compensatory time, and sick pay benefits. Upon separation of service with the
County, non-critical employees are reimbursed for accumulated annual leave up to a maximum
of 45 days and accumulated compensatory time up to 240 hours. Sworn Officers, Corrections
Officers, and certain critical employees of the Sheriff's Office are reimbursed for accumulated
annual leave up to a maximum of 720 hours. Sworn Officers can be reimbursed for up to 480
hours of compensatory time. There is no liability recorded for unpaid accumulated sick leave
since the County does not have a policy to pay any of these amounts when employees separate
from service
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The County accrues the value of accumulated unpaid annual leave, compensatory time and
associated employee-related costs when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. Only the amount of unused annual leave and compensatory pay that is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources (amount estimated to
be used within 60 days of year-end) is recorded as an expense and a liability in the
governmental fund that will pay it. The non-current portion for governmental funds is
maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund and the government-
wide presentations,

11. Long-term Obligations:

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund-types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred
and amaortized over the life of the bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund-types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as debt service expenditures. Capital leases are recorded in the same manner,

12. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses;

Property taxes and interest assessed in the current fiscal pericd are accrued and are
recognized as revenues in the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments
receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be earned and therefore
recognizable as revenue of the current period.

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for
both governmental and business-type activities. In the fund financial statements, expenditures
are classified by character.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report éxpenditures of financial

resources. Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
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Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing goods irf
tonnection with the proprietary fund’s principal operations. Operating revenues include user
fees and charges. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

13. Accounting Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

14, Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

The County has adopted in FY2010 a new statement issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standard Board (GASB), Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Intangible Assets. As stated in GASB 51, this Statement establishes standards for the accounting
and financial reporting for intangible assets to be classified as capital assets. They should be
recognized in the statement of net assets. GASB 51 also establishes guidance related to the
amortization of intangible assets. The County did not have any items to gualify as such in
FY2010.

The County has implemented in FY2010, GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, which provides guidance on how to measure
these types of investments, The implementation of this new Statement had no impact on the
County’s FY2010 financial statements as they are not permissible under current investment

policy.

The County has recognized and put in place the required effort to implement in Fy2011,
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This
statement changes the present classifications of fund balance from the stated types: Reserved,
Designated, and Undesignated. The new classifications to be reflected starting in FY2011 will
be: Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, or Unassigned. The statement also
further clarifies the Governmentat Fund Type definitions explained on page 39 of these notes
and the subsequent reporting in the financial statements starting with FY2011.
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NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for all funds of the
County, except the four pension trust funds. However, a legal budget is adopted only for the
General Fund. Thus, the budgetary financial statement inctuded in this report as required
supplementary information does not include our Special Revenue Funds, the Debt Service Fund,
the Capital Projects Fund, the Proprietary Funds or the Fiduciary Funds. The basis for budgeting
is the modified accrual basis. All annual appropriations fapse at fiscal year-end. Project-length
budgets are adopted for the Capital Projects Fund which is projected in five year increments.

The legal level of budgetary control {that is, the level at which expenditures cannot
exceed budgeted appropriations) is at the program level. However, with proper approval by the
County Commissioners, budget transfers can be made. The budgeted financial statements
represented in this report reflect the final budget authorization, including ali amendments made
by the County Commissioners, There were no material violations of the annual appropriated
budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

B: Deficit Fund Equity

The Recreation Fund had a deficit fund balance of $1,585,380 as of June 30, 2010. The
deficit fund balance is the result of operations from an indoor recreation complex which was
acquired by the County in May 2006. A contract was awarded to Rink Management Services for
the operation of this facility and commenced on July 5, 2008. After two years of managing the
facility, significant improvements have been achieved in operations, including a smali gain for
the past fiscal year. However, the cumulative effect of these past results and continued
recording of the growing annuat OPEB liability share for the Recreation Fund as a whole wil!
continue to reflect a deficit fund balance into the short-term future.

The Golf Course Fund had a deficit fund balance of $114,481 as of June 30, 2010. Thisis
the cumulative result of past results and the continued recording of the County’s OPEB liability
share to the operation at year-end.
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NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments

Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland states that local governments
are authorized to invest in the instruments specified in the State Finance and Procurement
Article, Section 6-222 of the Code. In addition, Article 95, Section 22 requires that local
government deposits with financial institutions by fully collateralized and that the collateral by
of types specified in the State Finance and Procurement Article, Section 6-202. The County
Treasurer is charged with the responsibility for selecting depositories and investing idle funds as
directed by the State and County Codes. The County Treasurer is further restricted as to the
types of deposits and investments in accordance with the County’s investment policy.
Depository institutions must be Maryland banks and must be approved for use by the County
Commissioners.

Cash Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amount of the County’s deposits was 516,183,953 and the
bank balances were $16,623,405. Of the bank balance, $12,551,597 was covered by Federal
depository insurance and $4,071,808 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent in the County’s name.

At year-end, the carrying amount of the Board of Education’s deposits was $11,352,169
and the bank balances were $18,634,840. The bank balance was covered by either Federal
depository insurance or by collateral held in either the pledging bank’s trust department or by
the pledging bank’s agent in the Board’s name.

At year-end, the carrying amount of the Library’s deposits was $92,054 and the bank
balances was $90,144. The bank balance was covered by Federal depository insurance. The
amount of cash on hand was $830.

Investments

Statutes authorize the County Treasurer to invest in short-term US. government
securities or repurchase agreements fully secured by the United States government if the funds
are not needed for immediate disbursement. The stated maturities of the investments may not
exceed 365 days. Statutes also authorize the Treasurer to invest in a local government
investment pool established by state law. [nvestments are subject to approval of the County
Commissioners as to the amount available for investment and the acceptable securities or
financial institutions used.
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At year-end, the County’s cash and investment balances were as follows:

Total Total Totai
Governmental Fiduciary Enterprise
Funds Funds Funds Total
cash on hand $ 14,332,198 S 5 S 1,867,222  § 16,199,418
U.S. government securities
Treasuries 13,981,363 - - 13,981,363
Agencies 10,970,948 S 10,970,948
Repurchase agreements (sweep) 5,000,000 o 5 5,000,000
Monay Market 1,066,080 3,445,244 - 4,511,324
Certificates of deposit 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Maryland |ocal government poot 42,896,390 - - 42,896,390
Bond mutual funds - 52,204,106 - 52,204,106
Equity securities = 148,892,161 148,892,161
Total cash and investments $ 108,246,977 S 204,541,511 §  1,867.222 5 314,655,710

At year-end, the Board of Education’s cash and investment balances were as follows:

Cash on hand and deposits $ 303,305
Repurchase agreements 8,500,012
Maryland local government investment pool 35,074,607
Total cash and investments S 43,877,924

At year-end, the Library’s cash and investment balances were as follows:

Cash on hand and deposits 5 92,884
Maryland local government investment pool 437,774
Total cash and investments S 530,658

Investments in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP} are not
evidenced by securities. The investment pool, not the participating governments, faces the
custodial credit risk. The State Treasurer of Maryland exercises oversight responsibility over the
MLGIP. A single financial institution is contracted to operate the Pool. In addition, the State
Treasurer has established an advisory board composed of Pool participants to review the
activities of the contractor quarterly and provide suggestions to enhance the return on
investments. The MLGIP maintains an AAAm credit quality rating from Standard and Poor’s.
The MLGIP uses the amortized cost method to ¢compute unit value rather than market value to
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report net assets. Accordingly, the fair value of the position in the MLGIP is the same as the
value of MLGIP shares.

Investments made by the County under Agencies consists of several instruments backed
by either the Federal National Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation organizations, and are held in a custodial account along with Treasuries. These
agency investments are implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and carry a credit rating of
AAA,

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses stemming from rising interest
rates, the County’s investment policy prohibits the investment of operating funds in securities
maturing more than 365 days from the date of purchase.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the
counter party, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed to
custodial risk if the securities are uninsured, or not registered in the name of the government,
and are held by either the counter party or the counter party’s trust department or agent, but
not in the government’s name. The County’s policy relating to credit risk of investments require
that securities underlying all certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and reverse
repurchase agreements have a market value of at least 102 percent of the cost plus accrued
interest of the investment. County policies also require that a third party custodian hold
investments securities and the coliateral underlying all investments, in the government’s name.
The County’s Treasurer recognized investment diversification as an important safeguard of
County assets. Investment instruments, investment maturities, and financial institutions doing
business with the County shall be diversified in such @ way to Insure that there is no
concentration of risk in any of these categories. These diversification standards, as outlined in
the County’s Joint Statement of Investment Policies, are applied at the time of each investment.
At June 30, 2010, the County’s investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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B. Receivables

Receivables as of the year-end for the County's individual major funds and non-major
funds in the aggregate were as follows:

Water
and Solid Non-
Capital Gebt Sewer Waste major
General Projects Service Fund Fund Funds Total

Receivabies:
Interest $ 211597 § - $ - $ 7533 ¢ - $ - $ 219130
Taxes 21,760,288 - 31,563,767 - - - 53,324,055
Accounts 10,484,910 1,274,187 - 5,125,844 575,820 2,528,903 19,989,664
Special
assessments - - 7,236 279,144 - - 286,380
Intergovernmental 52,591 - - - - 1,005,190 1,057,781

Total receivables  $ 32,509,386 $ 1,274,187 § 31,571,003 S 5412521 $ 575820 § 3,534,093 § 74,877,010

Governmental funds repert unearned revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have
been received, but not vet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unearned Unavailable Totat

Delinguent property taxes receivablé

{General Fund} 8 - S 2,343,486 S 2,343,486
Deferred property taxes receivable

{Debt Service) = 31,549,597 31,549,597
Deferred income tax reserve - 19,248,322 19,248,322
Agricultural preservation taxes 1,037,839 - 1,037,839
Special #ssessments not yet due 8,542 8,542
School construction impact fees 2,645,870 - 2,645,870
Grant draw-downs prior to meeting all

eligibility requirements 529,178 5 529,178
Other unearned revenue 144,214 - 144,914
Loans recetvable (Debt Service Fund) - 44,157,249 44,157,249

Total unearned revenue for

governmental funds 5 4,357,800 & 97,307,196 $ 101,664,997
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£. Property Taxes Receivable

The County levies a property tax each July 1 on the assessed value of all taxable real
property location within the County on that date. Assessed values are established by the
Maryland Departments of Assessments and Taxation at assessed market value. A reassessment
of all property is required to be completed every three years. The rates of the levy cannot
exceed the constant yield tax rate furnished by the Maryland State Department of Assessments
and Taxation without public notice and onty after public hearings. The real property tax rate
during the year ended June 30, 2010 remained constant at $0.962 per $100 of assessed value.
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the property when levied on July 1 of each year.
The taxes are payable without interest by September 30.

Revenue relating to property taxes receivable, which have not been collected within

sixty days after year-end, have been reclassified from property tax revenues to deferred
revenues in governmental funds.

D. Notes Receivable

The following is a schedule of the notes receivable balantés of the Debt Service Fund:

Total Principal Balance
Loan & Year Borrowed Term & Rate £/30/2010
Hospital 2004 ¢ 15,000,000 15 years, 3.04831% s 11,420,095
ACPT 2004 & 8,000,000 15 years, 4%-5% B 5.385,000
ACPT 2005 6,000,000 15 years, 5%-5.125% 4,326,250
ACPT 2006 10,000,000 15 years, 5.125%-8% 7,870,000
ACPT 2007 3,000,000 15 years, 5.25%-5.75% 2,531,250
ACPT 2008 3,000,000 15 years, 4.90%-5.25% 2,653,875
ACPT 2009 2,000,000 15 years, 4%-5375% 1,851,667
Subtotal: ACPT § 32 000,000 n 24.618.042
So0. MD Baseball LLC 2008 9,248,200 15 years, 4 90%-5.25% 3 7,398,559
CSM 2005 1,000,000 15 years, 3.67% S 720,553
Total Notes Receivabie s 57,248,200 s 44,157,249
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Bonds issued by the County for American Community Properties Trust (ACPT), Southern
MD Baseball Club LLC, Coltege of Southern Maryland, and Civista Hospital are secured by Bond
Repayment Agreements, Letters of Credit, and by the full faith and credit of the County’s
General Fund. Principal and interest payments on the related bonds from these restricted
resources are also accounted for in the same Debt Service fund.

The future minimum note payments receivable for the year ended June 30, 2010 are as'follows!

Civista ACPT 50. MD Baseball CSM Total
2011 5 1,247,234 5 3,084,573 [ 854,000 5 86,791 5 5,312,558
2012 1,247,234 3,085,642 894,000 86,751 5,313,667
2012 1,247,234 3,079,876 854,000 86,791 5,307,901
2014 1,247,234 3,075,650 854,000 86,791 5,303,675
2015 1,247,234 3,064,447 894,000 86,751 5:292.473
2016-2020 4,988,935 14,462,208 4,470,000 426,744 24,347,887
2021-2025 2,182,541 2,751,235 1,788,000 - 6,721,776
Subtotal 13,407,646 32,603,631 10,728.000 860,699 57,595,976
Less: Interest 1,987,351 7,985,589 3,325,441 140,146 13,442,727
Total future minimuwm
note payments receéivable $ 11,420,085 5 24,618.042 5 7.398,559 5 720,553 5 44,157,249
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E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year-ended-June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities Beginning Ending
Baldnce Incréases Dec¢reases Balance
Capital assets, not depreciated
Land $ 47,566,530 $ 6,009,380 s - $ 53,575,910
Construction in progress 184,186,032 19,455,723 69,856,792 133,784,963
Total capital assets, not depreciated 231,752,562 25,465,103 69,855,792 187,360,873

Capital assets, depreciated:

Land Improvements 7,381,922 1,710,954 9,092,876
Infrastructure 250,411,028 53,664,376 - 304,075,404
Buildings and Improvements 113,033,511 14,142,667 - 127,176,178
Machinery and Equipment 38,024,365 1,462,642 27,693 39,459,314
Vehicles 19,677,797 1,517,713 641,406 20,554,104
Total capital assets, depreciated 428,528,623 72,498,352 669,099 500,357,876

Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Land Improvements {1,760,855) (465,268) - {2,226,123)
Infrastructure (147,709,407} {7,560,667) - (155,270,074)
Buildings and Improvements (52,047,657} (3,275,968) - {55,324,625)
Machinery and Equipment (12,996,986 (2,862,012) (27,693} {15,831,305)
Vehicles (13,249,796} {2,306,523) {500,314) {15,056,005)
Total accumulated depreciation {227,764,701) {16,471,438) {528,007) (243,708,132}
Total capital assets, depreciated net 200,763,922 56,026,914 141,092 256,649,744
Governmental activities, capital
assets, net S 432,516,484 S 81,492,017 $ 69,597,884 S 444,010,617
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Business Type Activities Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not depreciated:

Land S 2,174,186 - 5 - S 2,174,186

Construction in progress 79,891,054 7,056,197 46,329,047 40,618,204
Tota! capital assets, not depreciated 82,065,240 7,056,197 46,329,047 42,792,390
Capital assets, depreciated:

Land Improvements 9,837,898 53,234 - 9,891,132

Infrastructure 185,658,496 18,686,641 - 204,345,137

Buildings and Improvements 13,936,929 203,508 - 14,140,437

Machinery and Equipment 9,572,608 28,816,459 41,785 38,347,282

vVehicles 4,772, 50 - 92,930 4,679,170
Total capital assets, depreciated 223,778,031 47,759,842 134,715 271,403,158
Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Land Improvements (4,983,435} (258,805} {5,242,240)

Infrastructure (102,715,152) (4,926,168) & (107,641,320}

Buiidings and Improvements (3,321,312) (472,824) - (3,794,136)

Machinery and Eguipment (6,634,812) (1,002,732} {41,785) (7,595,759)

Vehicles (3,517,777) {440,374) {92,930} {3,865,221)
Total accumulated depreciation (121,172,488) {7,100,903) {134,715) (128,138,676)
Total capital assets, depreciated net 102,605,543 40,658,939 - 143,264,482
Business-type, capital assets, net S 184,670,783 S 47,715,136 S 46,329,047 5 186,056,872
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government 5 22,055
Public Safety 4,288,145
Legislative 133,367
Judicial 57,297
Financial Administration 183,548
Law 2,751
Planning and Growth 12,780
Health 173,192
Community Services 650,245
Public Facilities 10,867,406
Education 80,652

Total depreciation expense- Governmental Activities S 16,471,438

Business-Type Activities:

Water and Sewer S 5,650,377
Solid Waste 697,830
Recycling/Environmental Service 319,907
Parks 47,342
Recreation 334,474
Inspection 50,973
Total depreciation expense-Business-type Activities & 7,100,903
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Construction Commitments

The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2010. The projects include
widening and reconstruction of existing streets and bridges, maintenance of existing roads,
landfill expansion, construction of a new Courthouse building, and the improvement and
expansion of existing water and sewer facilities. At year-end, the County’ s project
commitments are as follows:

Remaining

Transportation

Road and bridge expansions $ 61,704,485 $ 54,861,601

Other transportation projects 65,592 268,048
General government

Buidings and improvements 17,944,875 13,373,671

Courthouse expansion 16,107,641 905,93%

Other general government projects 4,579,433 8,283,007
Water and sewer

Expansions and improvements 22,237,510 56,472,229
Parks

Expansions and improvements 6,700,464 7876486
Environmental service

Varicus environmental service projects 898,411 5,496,359

Total $ 130,638,415 $ 147,537,340

Most construction projects are financed, in part or in full, by general obligation bonds.
Road and bridge expansions are also financed by off-site road fees and transfers of existing
resources from the General Fund. Water and sewer expansions are financed by general
obligation bonds, the state, and property owners.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Capital asset activity for the Board of Education for the year ended June 30, 2010, was
as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not depreciated:
Land $ 15,280,189 S 1,407,297 8 - $ 16,687,486
Construction in progress 9,487,924 8,203,029 {8,469,189) 9,221,764
Total capital assets, not depreciated 24,768,113 3,610,326 {8,469,189) 25,908,250
Capital assets, depreciatec:
Buildings 404,446,008 8,805,552 - 413,251,560
Land Improvements 7,803,891 446,452 - 8,250,343
Furniture and Equipment 26,208,502 1,850,809 {798.002) 27,261,309
Total capital assets, depreciated 438,458,401 11,102,813 {798,002} 448,763,212
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {170,952,678) (10,707,788} - {181,660,466)
Land Improvements {5.605,672) {339,385} - {5,945,057}
Furniture and Equipment { 18,496,486} (2,094,362} 770,083 (19,820,765}
Total accumulated depreciation {195,054,836} {13,141,535) 770,083 {207,426,288)
Total capital assets, depreciated net 243,403,565 (2,038,722} {27,919} 241,336,924
Board capital assets, net $ 268,171,678 $  7,57L,604 $ (8,497,108} § 267,246,174

Capital asset activity for the Library for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, depreciated:

Furniture and Equipment $ 613,863 S 80,794 $ {9,284) 5 665,373

Library books and AV material 1,004,198 213,229 {268,796] 948 631
Total capital assets, depreciated 1,618,061 274,023 {278,080) 1,614,004
Less: accumulated depreciation {1,029,419) {303.208) {274,176} {1,058.449)

Library capital assets, depreciated, net § 583,642 $ 129,183} 5 {3,904) 5 555,555
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F. Inter-fund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The General Fund is the main fund used to collect, invest, and disburse monies for
governmental and proprietary funds. This creates temporary inter-fund balances. The

composition of inter-fund balances as of June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Due (to} from ether funds:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
General Fund S (83,572,556) 3 =
Capital Projects Fund 24,645,679 =
Debt Service Fund 126,205 -
Water and Sewer Fund 3 19,911,501
Solid Waste Fund - 13,825,058
Other Non-major Funds 6,615,110 {1,551,3597)
Total S {32,185,562) S 32,185,562

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires
to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expand them and to (b) use
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. The following is a schedule of inter-
fund transfers:

Transfers In

Capital Debt Non-major Non-major
Transfers General Projects Service Governmeantal Enterprise
Qut Fund Fund Fund Fungs Funds Total
Genera!
Fund 5 - $ 1,025,000 s - 4 3,135,080 5 69,618 5 4229698
Capital
Projects
Fund 6,095,200 5,437,700 - 11,532,200
Non-major
Governme nt
al Funds 700,000 : 19,428 - 719,428
Solid Waste
Fund 599,800 599,800
Non-major
Entarprise
Funds . - - EL -
Total
Transfers In: $ 7.395.000 S 1,025,000 § 54372,7200 S5 3154508 $ 69,618 $ 17.081.826
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G. Leases
Capital Leases:

The County has entered into several lease agreements as lessee for financing the
acquisition of various machinery and equipment. These |ease agreements qualify as capital
leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their
future minimum lease payments as of the inception dates. Information on each of the various
lease agreements is as foliows:

e Fiscal Year 2005 — Various equipment for the General Fund, water and Sewer Fund,
Environmental Service Fund, Parks Fund, and Inspection Fund, - semiannual
payments of $159,787 over five years ending August 2009, including interest at a
rate of 2.96%, equipment capitalized at $1,475,000.

o Fiscal Year 2006 - Various equipment for the General Fund, Water and Sewer Fund,
Environmental Service Fund, and Cable Franchise Fund, - semiannual payments of
$205,840 over five years ending July 2010, including interest at a rate of 4.63%,
equipment capitalized at $1,900,000.

o Fiscal Year 2006 —Equipment for the Charles County Sheriff's Office ~ semiannual
payments of $60,269 over five years ending November 2010, inciuding interest at a
rate of 3.398%, equipment capitalized at $550,000

e Fiscal Year 2007 — Various equipment for the General Fund, Inspection Fund, Parks
Fund, and Water and Sewer Fund — semiannual payments of $238,797 over five
years ending August 2011, including interest at a rate of 6.10%, equipment
capitalized at $2,150,000.

» Fiscal Year 2007 — Meter Replacement Lease for the Water and Sewer Fund —
semiannual payments starting at $132,965 and increasing to $396,605 over fifteen
years ending February 2022, including interest at a rate of 4.14%, various
components expended at $5,862,900.

e Fiscal Year 2008 — Various equipment for the General Fund, Water and Sewer Fund,
and the Environmental Service Fund — semiannual payments of $5214,239.62 over
five years ending August 2012, including interest at a rate of 3.72%, equipment
capitalized at $2,000,000.
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e Fiscal Year 2008 ~ Public Safety Partable Radios — semiannual payments of $98,905
over five years ending January 2013, including interest at a rate of 3.50%,
equipment capitalized at $900,160.

¢ Fiscal Year 2009 — Various equipment for the Gerneral Fund, Water and Sewer Fund,
Inspection Fund, and the Environmental Service Fund — semiannual payments of
5330,929 over five years ending September 2013, including interest at a rate of
3.65%, equipment capitalized at $3,000,000.

¢ Fiscal Year 2010 — Various equipment for the General Fund, Golf Course Fund,
Water and Sewer Fund, and the Environmental Service Fund — semiannual payments
of $120,511.61 thru FY13 except for a scheduled payment of $378,267.51 in
October 2011. Over the remaining period, scheduled payments of $22,556.86
ending October 2014, including interest at a rate of 3.30%, equipment capitalized at
$1,102,600.

The assets acquired through capital leases and still in use are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Assets:
Building and Improvements  $ 90,906 ) >
Machinery and equipment 8,840,797 2,023,557
Vehicles 5,306,257 2,661,578
Total capital assets 14,237,960 4,685,135
Less accumulated depreciation: ]
Building and Improvements {43,504} -
Machinery and equipment {5,962,563) {1,465,706)
Vehicles {4,214,119) (2,081,340)
Total accumulated depreciation {10,220,186) (3,547,046)
Totat capital assets, net S 4,017,774 S 1,138,089
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The future minimum obligations and the net present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2010, were as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2011 s 1,776,199 S 949,259 5 2,725,458
2012 1,309,505 1,112,221 2,421,726
2013 996,685 788,789 1,785,474
2014 255,122 605,578 860,700
2015 16,755 504,999 521,754
2016-2020 - 2,729,758 2,729,758
2021-2023 - 1,143,438 1,143,438
Subtotal ) 4,354,266 7,834,042 12,188,308
Interest {256,186} (1,504,011) (1,760,197)
Present value of minimum

lease payments 5 4,098,080 3 6,330,031 S 10,428,111

H. Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities. The original amount of general obligation bonds
issued in prior years was $568,393,000. During the year ended June 30, 2010, general obligation
bonds totaling $36,145,000 were issued for consolidated public improvement, of which
$11,415,000 were taxable build America bonds.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
County. In the past, these bonds have heen a mix of 10-year serial bonds and 15-year serial

bonds with equal amounts of principal maturing each year. The County’s General Obligation
Bonds currently outstanding are as follows:
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Amaunt Balance Balance
Bond Description and Year Borrowed Term and Rate 6/30/10 6/30/10
Consolidated Public tmprove ment Bonds
of 2001 $11,675,100 15yrs, 4125% -4 7% $ 599,168 & 225,832
Cansolidated Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2002 $26,860,000 15 yrs, 3% - 5% 1,690,282 449,718
Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds
of 2003 522,000,000 15 yrs, 2% - 4% 7,797,806 5,287,194
Consclidated Pubtic Improvement Bonds
af 2003 S 6,910,000 10yrs, 2% - 4% 2,280,000
Caonscolidated Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2004 $41,270,000 15 yrs, 2% - 4% 23,894,055 2,860,945
Consolhidated Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2004 $31,500,000 1Dvyrs, 2% - 4% 13,555,000
Consolidated Public Improvement Bands
{Taxable} of 2004 S 8000000 15yrs, 4% - 5% 5,385,000
Consolidated Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2005 $52,550,000  15yrs, 3% - 4.5% 22,189,451 1,765,549
Consolidated Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2005 $10,160,000  10vrs, 3% - 4.5% 5,635,000
Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds
{Taxable] of 2005 5 6000000 15yrs, 5% - 5.125% 4,415,000
Consolidated Public improve ment Bonds
of 2006 526,880,000  15yrs, 4% - 5% 18,203,803 2,851,197
Consolidated Public Improvemént Bonds
of 2006 $16,120,000  10yrs, 4% - 5% 10,330,000 -
Consolidated Public Improvement Bands
{Taxable} of 2006 510,000,000  15yrs, 5.125% - 8% 8,010,000 =
Consolidated Publicimprovement 8onds
of 2007 $33,700,000 15 yrs, 3.5% - 4% 16,034,996 12,315,004
Consclidated Publi¢c Improve ment Bonds
of 2007 $16,300,000 10 yrs,3.5% - 4% 12,010,000 -
Consolidated Publi¢ improvement Bands
{Taxable) of 2007 5 3,000,000 15yrs, 575%-5.51% 2,570,000 -
Consalidated Publicimprovement Bands
of 2008 $25.400,000  15yrs, 3% - 5% 14,181,673 8,473,327
Consolidated Publi¢c Improvement Bonds
of 2008 S 1,600,000 10yrs, 3% - 5% 1,315,000
Consolidated Publicimprovement 8onds
{Taxable) of 2008 520,000,000  15yrs, 5% - 5.25% 17,955,000 -
Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds
of 2008 $49,640,000  20yrs, 2% - 4.255% 37,773,833 5,401,167
Consolidated Publicimprovement Bonds
of 2009 S 900,000 10yrs, 2% - 4.25% 815,000
Consalidated Public impravement Bonds
{Taxable) of 2009 $ 2,000,000 15yrs, 4% - 5.375% 1,385,000
Consolidated Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2010 522,730,000 10yrs, 2% - 5% 13,738,757 8,951,243
Consalidated Pubiic Improvement and
Refunding Bonds of 2010 5 2,000,000 10 yrs, 2% - 5% - 2,000,000
Consolidated Public Improvemnent Taxable
BAB Bonds of 2010 511,415,000  5yrs, 5% - 5.30% 6.115.178 5,299,822
Total bands autstanding 248379002 £6,020.008
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Loan Description and Year

FHA Loan 1973 $ 250,000  40yrs, 3.649% 76,845

MD water Quality Revelving Loan Fund for

Pisgah Landfill S 7,838,664 15 yrs, 4.37% 1,070,840
MD water Quality Revolving Loan Fund ot

1996 § 1,512,911 15vrs, 4.35% = 132,878

MD Water Quality Revelving Loan
Mattawoman BNR Upgrade $14,767,900 20 vrs, 1.200% - 12,089,248

Total loans outstanding 1,147,685 12,222,126
Total bonds and loans outstanding $ 249,526,687 5 78,243,124

Advanced Refunding and Defeased Debt

On April 21, 2010, the County issued $36,145,000 in general obligation bonds,
$11,415,000 were Taxable Build America Bonds, $18,585,000 were new money tax exempt
bonds, and $6,145,000 was issued to defease old honds. The new money portion of $30,000,000
was used to finance certain capital projects in the County.

Of the $36,145,000 of general obligation bonds that were issued, $6,145,000 was used
to defease $6.680,415 in outstanding debt maturities of the County's Consolidated Public
Improvement Bonds of 2002. The refunded bonds will be called on January 15, 2012. In prior
years the County has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds.
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government
securities that were place in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the
investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures
For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and therefore removed
as a liability from the County’s government-wide financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, the
amount of defeased debt outstanding but removed from the financial statements amounted to
$6,145,000. As a result of the refunding, the County achieved a net present value savings of
$152,079.

Of the $36,145,000 of general obligation bonds, $11,415,000 was used to obtain
Taxahle Build America Bonds (BAB). The County expects to receive a cash subsidy payment from
the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the Taxable Bonds on each
interest payment date. This amounts to $2,678,877 in interest savings over the term of the
bonds.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Amounts Due
Beginning Ending Within Qne
Balances Additians Reductions Balances Year
General obligation bonds $ 258,422,307 $ 19.853,935 5 (29.897.240} 5 248,379,002 25,866,322
Plus deferred amounts
for bond premiums 7,319,764 1,466,388 {900.825) 7,885,326
Less deferred loss an
refunding {711,225) {507.279) 182,298 {1,036,206} -
Less deferred bond issve
COsts (1,199,177} (1335221 121,995 (1,210,704} -
Total bonds payable 263,831,66% 20,675,522 {30,493,773) 254,017,418 25,866,322
Notes payable 1,657,574 {509.889) 1,147,685 531,828
Capital leases 5,332,288 628,700 {1,862,908] 4,098,080 1,638,682
Net Pensian abligation 437,603 20 (17.411) 410,212 -
Net OPEB cbligatian 20,339,669 $.678.874 g 30,014,543 -
Compensated absences 12,689,777 840,165 {53,738} 12,476,204 1,122,847
Governmental actvities
noncurrent liabilities 304,274,580 31,837.281 {32,937.719) 303,164,142 29,159,679
Busi ; .
General obligation bonds 55,677,653 16,291,065 {5,947,7600 56.020,998 5,432,765
Plus deferted amounts
for bond premtums 1720921 1,105,843 {236,486} 2,580,278 =
Less deferred 1ass on
refunding {304,937 {122,502) 70,132 {357,307) -
Less deferred band Issue
costs {352,623} {109,638) 75,215 [387,046) E
Total bonds payable 56,741,054 17,164,768 (6,038,855} 67,866,923 5.432,765
Mobes payzble 12,031,157 a {809,031} 12,222,126 822,750
Capial leases 6,554,467 573,900 {798,336) 6,330,031 702,494
Landhl! closure costs 4,898,925 261837 = 5,160,762 -
Net Pension obligation 136,095 4,289 {8.510) 131,874 -
Net OPEB chligation 3,378,634 1,258,693 2 4,637,327 =
Compensatet absences 1552698 143,222 _[6,522) 1,682,358 204,751
Business-type activities
noncurrent liabilities 86.293.030 19,406,709 (7,661,298) 58,038,441 7,162,760
Total primary government
noncurrent liabilities $ 390567610 _$ 51,733,990 _$ [40.59%,018) § 401303582 36,322,439
Component units.
Board of Educatton $ 53,361,358 S 13,106,620 3 2 $ 66,467,978 730,000
lbrary s 183,330 5 1,867 § 3 185,197 185,197

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general
fund and certain special revenue funds.
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The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2010, including
interest of $87,878,186 and excluding compensated absences, net pension obligation, OPEB
obligation and landfill closure costs, are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Totai

2011 5 28,036,831 5 10,680,240 5 6,958,009 S 3,033,576 S 48,708,656
2012 28,158,490 9,629,738 7,092,418 2,837,519 47,718,165
2013 26,638,718 8,476,554 6,590,966 2,595 907 44 302,145
2014 25,670,844 7,446,131 6,588,771 2,367,504 42,073,250
2015 21,995,116 6,347,231 6,680,425 2,119,554 37,142,326
2016-2020 85,268,334 18,579,79% 30,392,258 6,678,583 140,919,024
2021-2025 30,382,937 4,436,489 17,778,711 1,651,598 54,250,135
2026-2030 7,473,847 807,412 2,491,597 189,951 10,962,407

§ 253,624,767 5 66,403,594 S 84,573,155 S 21,474,592 5 426,_076, 108
Conduit Debt

Charles County Government has issued five economic development revenue bonds for
the express purpose of providing capital financing for specific third parties that are not a part of
the Charles County’s financial reporting entity. These bonds neither constitute an indebtedness
nor do they represent a pledge of the full faith and credit of the Charles County Government
and are not reported as liabilities on the accompanying financial statements. Of these five
issues, three of them have been satisfied or paid in full. For the two issues remaining, the
aggregate principal amount outstanding at June 30, 2010 is $961,206.

Special Assessment Debt

In prior years, the County has had requested and granted various special assessments
on projects petitioned by citizens. These projects are performed by the County, but the cost is
fully funded by the property owners. No debt has been issued for these projects to date rather
they have been funded on a pay-go basis.
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I. Restricted Assets

The details of the restricted assets are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Cash and cash equivalents

Inmate account 5 45,962
County Attorney escrow 10,015
SAQ Restitution account 3,137
Charles Co. Bar Council 585,544
Lease deposits 10,016
Construction Escrow 1,300,611
Total cash and cash egquivalents % 1,965,285

Notes Receivabie

Civista 5 11,420,095
ACPT 24,618,042
So. MD Baseball LLC 7,398,559
College of Southern MD 720,553
Total notes receivable $ 44,157,249
Total Governmental Activities. $46,122,534

Business-type Activities

Cash and cash eguivalents

Landfill Bonds S 122,273

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 46,244,807
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The following are the components of Fund Balance in the governmental funds:
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Other Total
Capital Debt Service Governmental Governmental
General Furid Projects Fund Fund Funds Funds
Fund balances
Reserved for;
inventory & 1.528,416 5 § 5 1,528,416
Capital outlay 272,200 13,387,539 - 13,659,739
Economic
development 730,414 - - - 730,919
Debt service - 138,071 139,071
Judicial grants - 51,384 51,324
Transportation - - 913,704 913,704
Publicsafety 437,503 437,503
Community
development Erants - - 161,500 161.500
Housing . - 3,138,310 3138,310
Ammal contral - - 76,252 76,252
Crug enforcement - - 337,617 337,617
Fire and rescue - - - 84,164 84,164
Mental health = - 149,802 149,502
I-nettechnoiogy - - - 972,416 972,416
Total reserved 2,531,035 13,387.539 139.071 5,322,752 232,380,357
Health insurance 1,950,940 = n 1,550,940
Animal contral 30,616 - - 30,616
Housing 624,436 - - - 624,436
Infrastructure 5,676,831 5,999,356 11,676,237
Road improvements = 216,534 - = 216,534
Parks 10,839 - ) = 10.839
I-net technoiogy ~ - & 250,000 250,000
Policytarget 23,280,926 - v - 23,280,926
CIPand operations  ___ 4,907,669 = - - 4,907,669
Total designated 36,482,307 6,215,890 - 250,000 42,948,197
Otherundesignated 2.171.831 - - - 2171831
Total unreserved 38,654,138 6,215,890 S 250,000 45.120.028
Totzl fund balances {deficit]) & 41,185&7‘{2___ $ 19.503.4& 5 139.071 % 5,572,752 57,500,425

70

PDF compression, OCR, web optimization using a watermarked evaluation copy of CVISION PDFCompressor


http://www.cvisiontech.com/

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

NOTE 4. RISK MANAGEMENT

Liahility Insurance:

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The County was unable to obtain
general liakility, public officials legal liability, business auto lability, and auto physical damage
insurance from commercial insurance companies at a cost it considered to be economically
justifiable. The County and other local governments throughout the State joined together to form
the Local Government [nsurance Trust (LGIT), a public entity risk pool. The County pays an annual
premium to LGIT for its general insurance coverage. LGIT is self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies.

Self insured Health Care

The County is self-insured for employee health insurance through agreements with CareFirst
BiueCross BlueShield, Carefirst BlueChoice, and Delta Dental. Employees contribute 30% of the
estimated cost of the plan, and the County contributes 70%. Certain outside agencies and some
retirees are also covered under this agreement with varying contribution levels. The health
insurance agreements are claims-made policies with administrative fees paid to all carriers. The
policies include stop-loss provisions for claims in excess of $125,000 per person/per vear for
CareFirst. Cfaims in excess of this limit are covered by the insurance carrier. Delta Dental does not
have a stop-loss provision. At June 30, 2010, a hability of $1,080,000 ($725,050 in governmental
funds and $354,950 in business-type funds} was recorded for estimated claims incurred but not yet
reported {IBNR), which represents the estimated run-out claims liability should the self-insurance
agreement be terminated, Historical experience and actuarial assumptions were the basis used in
estimating the liabilities for unpaid claims.

The changes in the County’s claims liability are as follows:

Claims and
Fiscal Beginning Changesin
Year ‘___of Year Estimates Payments End of Year
2004 s 750 % 410 5 S 1,160
2005 $ 1180 600 = S 1,760
2006 5 1,760 = = % 1,760
2007 5 1,760 {8C0) $ 960
2008 5 960 {90 s 870
2009 $ 870 - $ 870
2010 % 870 210 - s 1,080
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Qther insurance

The County continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including other
general liability, earth movement, flood; employee health, dental, and life; warker’'s compensation,
unemployment, and long-term disability insurance. Settlement claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past five years

NOTE 5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Contingencies Under Grant Provisions

The County participates in federal and state assisted programs and is a recipient of
several grants. These programs and grants are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors or their representatives. Any liability for reimbursement that may arise as a result of
these audits is not believed to be material. The County has experienced audits of a few
programs during the year ended June 30, 2010, which have not resulted in any findings or
liabilities. The County does not expect any disallowances of grant expenditures in the future.

B. Litigation

Charles County is routinely engaged in litigation regarding matters that arise in the
normal course of the County’s activities. In the opinion of the County Attorney and County
Management, none of these matters will have a material effect on the financial position of the
County. Additionally, a large Power Plant operating in the County has appealed the State of
Maryland’s real and personal property assessments for calendar year 2008 and is likely to also
appeal its real and personal property assessments for calendar year 2009. Charles County has
vigorously contested these appeals and has cross-filed its appeals contending that the
assessments ate t00 low. These appeals are currently pending before the Maryland Tax Court.
In the opinion of the County Attorney and County Management the likelihood of an unfaveorable
outcome and material loss is remote.
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NOTE 6. PENSION & TRUST PLANS

The County maintains two separate single-employer, defined benefit pension plans:
one for the Sheriff's Office and Communications employees and one for substantially all other
full-time County employees. The two pension plans are maintained as Pension Trust Funds.

Charles County also administers a single employer length of service award program
(LOSAP) for volunteer fire and rescue members of all Charles County Companies and
Departments. The County does not produce separate comprehensive financial reports for any
of the fiduciary plans. Therefore, all required disclosures for the plans are included within this

report,

The following are the required statements for the County’s Fiduciary Funds, including
the OPEB trust funds that are explained in detail under Note 7 starting on page 92
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County's Pension Sheriff's Pension OPEB Trust Funds LOSAP Funds Total
ASSETS:
Current assets.
Cash and cash equivalents S 7317483 S 450,002 & 667,759 S 0 S 3,445,244
Interest receivable 0 111,844 0 0 111,344
Total current assets . 2,317,483 571,846 b67,759 Q 3,557,088
Invastments at fair vaiue:
Bond mutual funds 12,151,980 40,052,126 0 0 52,204,106
Equity securities 74,857,348 64,886,582 0 9,148,231 148,852,161
Total investments 87,009,328 104,938,708 0 9,148,231 201,096,267
Tatal assets 89,326,811 105,510,554 667,759 9,148,231 204,653,355
LIABILITIES:
Accrued expenses {48,568) 4] g 4 {48,568)
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits 4 89,278,243 S 105,510,554 s 667,759 4 9,148,231 s 204,604,787
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

County's Pension Sheriff's Pension OPES Trust Funds LOSAP Funds Total
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions % 6,547,222 5 6,964,201 b3 238,500 ) 752,400 14,502,323
Employee contributions 1,999,614 2,227,278 0 O 4,226,862
Total contributions 8,546,836 9,191,479 238,500 752,400 18,729,215
Investment earnings:
Interest, Dividends, Gains 2,848,940 2,837,590 339 89,532 5,776,401
Net change in fair value of investments 5,594,817 11,175,741 0 854,453 17,625,011
Total investment earnings 8,443,757 14,013,331 339 943,985 23,401,412
Less investment expenses 0 {1,501,296) 4] 4] {1,501,296)
Net investment earnings 8,443,757 12,512,035 339 943,985 21,900,116
Total additions 16,990,593 21,703,514 238,835 b 1,696,385 40,629,331
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits paid to members 2,413,429 5,227,729 4] 598,504 8,239,662
Administrative costs 630,476 157,180 1,743 26,720 £16,119
Total deductions 3,043,905 5,384,909 1,743 625,224 9,055,781
Changes in net assets 13,945,683 16,318,605 237,096 1,071,161 31,573,550
Net assets - beginning of year 75,331,555 89,191,549 430,663 8,077,070 173,031,237
Net assets - end of year ) 89,278,243 $ 105,510,554 5 667,75% 5 9,148,231 204,604,787
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A. Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan

Plan Description — The Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan {SORP) is a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan. The County administers the plan in accordance with Article 25,
Section 3 {g-1) of the Annotated Code of Maryland. The County Commissioners have the
power and authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the SORP. All full-
time employees classified as sworn officers, correctional officers, or communications
employees are eligible to participate in the plan. The plan provides retirement, disability,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost of living adjustments are also
provided.

Membership in the plan consisted of the following at July 1, 2009, the date of the last
actuarial valuation:

Correctional Communications

Sworn Officers Officers Employees
Active plan members 285 143 39
Retirees and beneficiaries
receiving benefits 87 8 5
Disabled, receiving benefits 13 1 -
Vested termination 1 1 -
386 153 44

Prior to July 1, 1995, the County contracted with an insurance company to provide the
guaranteed payment of benefits for retirees of the SORP. Beginning July 1, 1995, the County
enacted significant changes in the eligible classes of employees and in the Investment
policies. Currently, the insurance company has reésponsibility for payment of benefits only
for those employees whao retired before July 1, 1995. The funding of continued benefits for
those pre-7/1/95 retirees comes from the County, based on quarteriy calculations made by
the insurance company. Assets held by the insurance company for payment of benefits
total $5,566,403 at lune 30, 2010, and are classified as fixed income investments. Benefits
paid by the insurance company for the year ended June 30, 2010 totaled 51,122,250,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: Basis of Accounting and Valuation of
Investments — The statement of plan net assets and the statement of changes in plan net
assets are prepared an the accrual basis of accounting. SORP member contributions are
recognized when due. The County’s employer's contributions are recognized when due and
a formal commitment to provide the contributions has been made. Employer-required
contributions are calculated by an independent actuarial firm and are paid after formal
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approval by the County Commissioners. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.
Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Market
quotations are used for investments traded in an active securities market, and contract
values are used for unallocated insurance contracts. Investments are managed by an
investment committee which includes an outside investment consultant. The plan is
administered by a third-party administrator. Fund assets are held by a custodian. The
County does not issue a stand-alone financial report for the Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan,
nor is it included in the report of any other entity.

Contributions and Reserves — The County Commissioners have the power and authority to
establish and carry out a funding policy and method consistent with the objectives of the
Plan. Sworn officers are required to contribute 8% of their base earnings. Correctional
officers and communications dispatchers are required to contribute 7% of their base
earnings. Base earnings are the employee’s earnings as of the first day of the County’s fiscal
year. Earnings for contribution purposes are adjusted annually, on July 1. The County
makes the required employer contributions annually, as actuarially determined.
Administrative costs of the Plan are financed through investment earnings and additional
contributions of the employer.

Investment Concentrations — At June 30, 2010, net assets were invested in fixed income
mutual funds {38%) and Equity mutual funds (62%).

Plan Provisions — The following are the plan provisions of the SORP:

Vesting — For Sworn Officers 5 years of service is required to be 100% vested. For
Communications & Corrections Officers, 20 years of service IS required to be 100% vested.

Normal Retirement Age ~ 25 years of service, or age 60, if earlier. For Sworn Officers hired
before 7-1-86, 20 years of service, or age 60, if earlier.

Normal Form of Benefit — Single life annuity with death benefit of undistributed employee
contributions plus accumulated interest at 3.0% compounded annually to date of
retirement. QOther forms are the actuarial equivalent,

Post-Retirement Cost of Living Increases — CPI Index, but no mofe or less than 4% In a year.

Emplovee Contributions — 8% of base earnings for Sworn Officers. 7% of base earnings for
Correctional and Communications.
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Average Compensation — Three year average of base pay onJuly 1.

Benefit Formula — For Sworn Officers, 3% for each of first 20 years and 2% thereafter, to a
maximum of 80% of average compensation. For Correctional Officers, 2.25% per year to a
maximum of 75% of average compensation. For Communications Officers, 2.0% per year to
a maximum of 75% of average compensation.

DROP - For Sworn Officers, a 5 year DROP (Deferred Retirement Option Program) is offered
DROP allows a sworn member of the Sheriff's Office to retire without terminating
employment for up to S years. DROP credits consist of DROP monthly retirement income
deposits and County pick-up contributions. DROP monthly retirement income deposits are
subject to annual COLA. DROP account balances are credited with 7% interest each July 1.

Service — Up to three years of military service counts for benefit, but not eligibility.
Accumulated sick leave provides an increased benefit percentage of 1% for 500 hours and

additional 0.1% for each additional 100 hours to a maximum of 4.0%

Early Retirement — With at least 20 years of service, reduction factors are as follows:

Sworn Communications
Years early {post 7/1/86) & Corrections
1 3.0% 84%
2 6.0% 16.8%
3 9.0% 25.2%
4 12.0% 32.4%
5 15.0% 39.6%

Termination Prior to Retirement ~ Return of employee contributions with 3% interest.

Line of Duty Disability — For Total and Permanent, 66-2/3% average compensation reduced
by 50% of Social Security benefits, 100% of Worker's Compensation benefits and LTD
benefits, if any. For Disability from Own Position, a percentage of final 3 years average
earnings, based on a percentage disability as determined by the Disability Review Board,
subject to:

a) amiminum of 15%

b} a maximum of 50%

¢} offset of S0% of Social Security

d) offset of 100% of Workers Compensation

e} offset by LTD benefits, if any

Communications Dispatchers are not eligible for this benefit
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Non-Line of Duty Disability — S years of service is required for this benefit. For Total and
Permanent, a percentage of final 3 years average earnings, based on a percentage disability
as determined by the Disahility Review Board, subject to:

a) a miminum of 15%

b) a maximum of 40%

¢) offset of 50% of Social Security

d} offset of 100% of Workers Compensation

e) no benefits until LTD benefits, if any, expire.
For Disability from Own Position, a percentage of final 3 years average earnings, based on a
percentage disahility as determined by the Disability Review Board, subject to:

a) a miminum of 15%

b} a maximum of 50%

c) offset of 50% of Social Security

d) offset of 100% of Workers Compensation

e) offset by LTD benefits, if any

Disability must be catastrophic (loss of timb, loss of hearing, blindness).

Communications Dispatchers are not eligible for this benefit.

Pre-Retirement Spouse’s Benefit — For Line of Duty Death Benefit, 66-2/3% of participant’s
average compensation less any survivor benefits paid under Social Security. For Non-Line of
Duty Death Benefit, 100% of the normal retirement benefit accrued to date of death, with
reduction based on spouse’s age.

Other Pre-Retirement Death Benefits ~ A beneficiary will receive employee contributions
plus credited interest.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation — The annual pension cost for the year
ended June 30, 2010 was equal to the amount of the Annual Required Contribution of
$6,964,201. There was no net pension obligation at June 30, 2010. The Annual Required
Contribution for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2009 actuarial
valuation. The actuarial assumptions and methods include:

Funding Method — Projected unit credit with amortization of the unfunded accrued liability
over a period of 20 years as level percentage of pay. Total payroll is assumed to increase
3.5% per year.

Asset Method - Three-year average method. Returns on the average market value of assets
above or below the assumed 8% return are gradually recognized over a three-year period.
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Interest — 8% compounded annually.

Post-Retirement COLA increases — 3% compounded annually, no limit,

Monrality — RP-2000 Blue Colfar Mortality. A five-year set-forward is used for post-disability
mortality.

Salary Increases — 5.5% compounded annually.

DROP Load Factor — Retirement liabilities were loaded to reflect Sworn Officers electing a 5-

year DROP.
) Sheriff's Hired afterto 7/1/1986
Years of Service Years of Service
Age 25 30 32 Age 25 30 35
45 1.055 1.071 1.219 a5 1.000 1.071 1219
50 1.075 1.092 1242 50 1,000 1.092 1.242
&5 1.105 1121 1.275 55 1,000 1121 1.275

These factors are based on Blue Collar Male Mortality at 8%. DROP account accrues interest
at 7% per year and DROP credits increase each year by the COLA.

Disability — Sample rates are as follows:

Age Rate
25 0.19%
35 28%
45 98%

Rates are reduced by 50% for corrections and communications employees.

Assumed Disability Benefit — 66-2/3% of average compensation reduced by $5,000 per year
to model the offsetting benefits.

Turnover — Sample rates for those with 0-10 years of service are as follows:

Corrections and

Age Swarn Officers Communications
5 6.03% 15.45%

35 5.26% 13.72%

45 3.35% 10.33%

The turnover rates for those with 10-15 years of service are assumed to be 50% of those
with 0-10 years of service. The rates for those with more than 15 years of service are
assumed to be 10% of the base rates for the Deputy Sheriff's and 37.5% of the base rates for
the Correctional and Cornmunications Employees.
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Retirement —

Sheriff's hired prior to 7/1/1986

Years of Service % Retiring

0-1% 0%
20 50%
21+ 20%

100% of participants are assumed to retire at age 60.

Sheriff's hired after to 7/1/1986
Years of Service % Retiring

0-19 0%
20 10%
21-24 5%
25 50%
26-27 0%
28+ 20%

100% of participants zre assumed to retire at age 60.

Corrections & Communications

Years of Service

Age 0-15 20-24 23 26+
40 0.00% 12.23% 50.00% 20.00%
45 0.0G% 10.33% 50.00% 20.00%
50 0.00% 7.23% 5000% 20.00%
55 0.00% 2.74% 50.00% 20.00%
60 100% 100% 100% 100%

Sick Leave ~ Unused sick’lgave 1s assumed to increase 60 hours per years

Termination — For Sworn Officers, participants terminating with 5 or more years of service are
eligible for a benefit. Participants reaching age 45 are assumed to receive accrued benefit upon
reaching age 60. All other participants are assumed to elect to receive a refund of their
contributions. Eor Cemmunications and Correctional Officers, terminating with less than 20

years of service (normal retirement eligibility) are assumed to receive a refund of their
contributions.

Military Service — Actual service.
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Loading — A (.5% loading expense is added to the liabilities and normal cost for administrative
expenses and $95,000 is added to the normal cost for investment expenses. The $95,000 was
added with the 2008 valuation

Other Methods and Assumptions — Cost and assets are measured separately for each of the
three employee groups. If an employee transfers between groups, assets are also transferred
The allocation between each group is intended to be an approximation of the cost and assets as
if each had a separate plan. However, there is only one plan and trust fund.

Transferred and purchased service are tracked for each employee. All known and confirmed
service is included in the current valuation. The value of remaining employee contributions to
purchase service in included in the actuarial value of assets.

The July 2009 valuation determines the cost for fiscal year 2011,

The valuation cost is also the GASB 27 pension expense. The_actuary believes that there.is no
past or current Net Pension Obligation (NPO),

The salary provided is as of July 1, 2009. It is assumed to be the salary for the next 12 months
and not part of the accrued benefit when measuring projected benefits. Projected salary is
limited to the current 401{a)(17) pay cap.

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
SHERIFF'S OFFICE RETIREMENT PLAN

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Required of ARC Pensicn
Ending Contribution Contribution Obtigation
6/30/2004 S 4,100,000 100% S0
6/30/2005 4,150,000 100% $0
6/30/2006 4,451,597 100% S0
6/30/2007 5,263,564 100% S0
6/30/2008 4,955,872 100% s0
6/30/200% 5,861,072 100% 50
6/30/2010 6,964,201 100% S0
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PRDGRESS
SHERIFF'S OFFICE RETIREMENT PLAN

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued a % of
value of Uability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Actuarizl Assets {AAL) AAL {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
valuation Date {a) (b)) (b-a) _la/b) {c) {{b-a)/c)
‘Deputy Sheriffs
7/1/04 $ 63,700,221 $ 82,011,919 5 18,311,598 77.7% $ 13,438,004 136.3%
7/1/05 $ 71,281,359 $ 91,951,068 5 20,669,709 77.5% $ 14,195,503 145 6%
7/1/06* $ 80,364,953 $ 9525770 S 19,160,817 80.7% $ 15,923,523 120.3%
7/1/06 $ 80,364,953 $ 100,619,352  § 20,254,399 79.9% $ 15,923,523 127.2%
7/1/07** $ 90,764,831 $ 108,715,685  $ 17,950,854 83.5% $ 16,500,338 106.2%
7/1/07 $ 90,764,831 $ 111,427,411  § 20,662,580 81.5% $ 16,900,338 122.3%
7/1/08 $ 98,067,749 $ 121,806,238  $ 23,738,489 80.5% $ 18,653,670 127 3%
7/1/09 $ 99,101,656 $ 128,639,635  $ 29,537,979 77.0% $ 15,245,648 153.5%
Corrections Officers
7/1/04 $ 7,322,494 $ §,2204% 5 1,898,000 79.4% $ 4,612,304 41.2%
7/1/05 $ 8536271 $ 10885333  § 2,345,062 78.4% $ 5,219,549 45 0%
7/1/06* $ 9,974,580 $ 12,679,170 $ 2,704,580 78.7% $ 6,086,937 44.4%
7/1/06 $ 9,974,590 $ 12,841,699 $ 2,867,108 77.7% $ 6086937 47.1%
7/1/07 $ 11,894,146 $ 14,773,914 § 2,879,768 80.5% $ 6,898,253 41.7%
7/1/08 $ 13,315,300 $ 17613334 $ 4,298,034 75.6% $ 7,834,547 54.9%
7/1/09 $ 14,275,513 $ 19,618,794 § 5,343,281 72.8% 5 8,062,697 66.3%
Communications Employees
7/1/04 $ 2,674,056 $ 3,180,222 $ 506,166 84.1% $ 1,145,301 44.2%
7/1/05 $ 2,998,522 $ 349,802 § 498,230 85.8% $ 1175771 42.4%
7/1/06* $ 3,353,839 $ 3982409 $ 628570 24.2% $ 1,481,266 42 4%
7/1/06 $ 3,353,839 $ 4027929 S 674,09 83.3% $ 1,481,256 45.5%
7/1/07 $ 3,854,388 $ 4518778 $ 664,390 85.3% $ 1,698,330 39 1%
7/1/08 5 4,243,211 $  5.352,606 $  1,109395 79.3% S 1,948,764 56.9%
7/1/09 5 4391636 $ 5496181 5 1,104,545 79.9% $ 1,956,033 56.5%
Total
7/1/04 $ 73,696,771 $ 94412635 S 20,715,864 78.1% $ 19,195,608 107.9%
7/1/05 $ 82,815,152 $ 106,333,203  § 23,517,051 77.9% $ 20,590,823 114.2%
7/1/06* $ 93,693,382 $ 116,187,349  § 22,453,567 80.6% $ 23,491,726 95.8%
7/1/06 § 93,693,382 $ 117,488,980  $ 23,795,598 79.7% $ 23,491,726 101.3%
7/1/07** $ 106,513,365 $ 128,008,377 5 21,495,012 83.2% $ 25,496,921 84.3%
7/1/07 $ 106,513,365 $ 130,720,103 5 24,206,738 81.5% $ 25,496,921 94.9%
7/1/08 $ 115,626,260 $ 144,772,178  $ 29,145,918 79.9% $ 28,436,981 102.5%
7/1/08 $ 117,768,805 $ 153,754,610  $ 35,985,805 76.6% $ 29,264,378 123.0%
Note: *Before mortality change.
**Before plan change.
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B. County Employees Retirement Plan

Plan Description — The County Employees Retirement Plan {the County Plan) is a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan, established in accordance with Article 25, section 3{g) of
the Annotated Code of Maryland. The County Commissioners have the power and authority to
establish and amend the benefit provisions of the County Plan. All full-time employees not
otherwise eligible for the SORP are eligible to participate in the plan. The plan provides
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost of living
adjustments are also provided.

Membership in the plan consisted of the following at July 1, 2009, the last date of the last
actuarial valuation:

Active plan members 842
Terminated, entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 124
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 169

1,135

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: Basis of Accounting and Investment Valuation —
The statement of plan net assets and the statement of changes in plan net assets are prepared
on the accrual basis of accounting. Member contributions are recognized when due. Emptoyer-
required contributions are recognized upon formal approval by the County Commissioners.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the
plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost,
which approximates fair value. Market quotations are used for investments traded in an active
securities market, and contract values are used for unallocated insurance Ccontracts.
Investments are managed by an investment committee which includes an outside investment
consultant. The plan is administered by a third-party administrator who also acts as custodian
for the fund assets. The County does not issue a stand-alone financial report for the County
Employees Retirement Plan, nor is it included in the report of any other entity.

Contributions and Reserves — The County Commissioners have the power and authority to
establish and carry out a funding policy and method consistent with the objectives of the Plan
Active non-public safety plan members are required to contribute 4% of their base €arnings to
the Plan and no contributions are required after 31 years of credited service. Public safety plan
members are required to contribute 7% of their base earnings. Base earnings are the
employee’s earnings as of the first day of the County’s fiscal year. Earnings for contribution
purposes are adjusted only once annually, on July 1. The County normally makes employer
contributions annually as actuarially determined. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the County
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fully funded the ARC of $6,547,222 to the Plan as recommended in the actuarial report as of
July 1, 2009. Administrative costs of the Plan are financed through investment earnings and:

additional contributions of the employer

Investment Concentrations — At June 30, 2010, the County’s Plan’s net assets were invested in
the following types of investments:

Guaranteed Deposit 19%
Fixed Income - Domestic 21%
Large Cap Stock 29%
International Stock - Blend 12%
Special Equity - Real Estate Fund 5%
Mid Cap Stock 6%
Small Cap Stock 8%

Plan Provisions — The following are the plan provisions of the County Plan:

Normal Retirement Date — For non-public safety participants, the first day of the month
coinciding with or next following the later of a participant’s 62" birthday or the completion of 5
years of service. For participants in the Plan prior to July 1, 1977, there is an elective normal
retirement date of age 60. For public safety participants, the first day of the month coinciding
with or next following the earlier of a participant’s 60" birthday or 25 hypothetical years of

service.
Income Payable — Amounts described in (a) or (b) below, whichever applies

(a) If participant has a spouse as of his/her retirement date and does not elect
otherwise, retirement income shall be paid on the basis of Joint and Survivor Form,
as stipulated by ERISA, and will be the amount determined under the benefit
formula multiplied by the appropriate factor.

(b} If participant either has no spouse as of his/her retirement date or elects to receive
his/her income under the normal form, retirement income will be the amount

determined under the benefit formula.

Form of Annuity — Modified cash refund.

Cost of Living Increases ~ Provides for an annual increase/decrease in the annuity benefit in
proportion to the last annual increase in the Consumer Price Index. This increase/decrease shall

not be in excess of 4% per year.
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Earnings ~ Basic compensation received from the employer excluding overtime payments,
commissions, bonuses and any other additional compensation, subject tg a $200,000 limit

Final Earnings — Highest average rate of earnings on any three consecutive July 1's during the
last ten years before retirement date, early retirement, or termination of employment.

Benefit Formula — Employees are entitled to an annual retirement benefit payable monthly for
iife, calculated as follows:
For non-public safety participants:
Final average earnings X 1.5% X credited years of service 1-5
Final average earnings X 1.75% X credited years of service 5-10 plus
Final average earnings X 2.0% X credited years of service 10-15 plus
Final average earnings X 2.25% X credited years of service 15-20 plus
Final average earnings X 2.5% X credited years of service in excess of 20
To a maximum benefit of 65% of final average earnings
For public safety participants:
Final average earnings X 2.0% X credited years of service
To a maximum benefit of 75% of final average earnings

Service — All years of service with the County from date of employment to early retirement,
termination of employment, or retirement date.

Credited Service ~ All years of service with the County while making contributions to the Plan,
from the date of employment to early retirement, termination of employment, or retirement
date except the first year of service is excluded for participants hired prior to July 1, 1968 if
centributions were not made for the first year.

Additional Credited Service — For non-public safety participants, the Plan provides for additional
credited service due to earned but unused sick leave at the rate of 22 days of sick leave equals
one month of additional credited service, provided the employee has a minimum of 5 years of
service, with a maximum of 12 months additional credited service. Additional credited service
for military service up to 5 years if earned during employment, if precedes employment, up to 3
years if nen-military service is at least 10 years. For public safety participants, 1% of final
average earnings for the first 500 hours of unused sick leave plus .1% final average earnings for
every 100 hours above 500 up to a maximum additional 4% final average earnings. Additional
credit service for military service up to 3 years, if precedes employment, up to 3 year if non-
military service is at least 10 years.
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Participation Eligibility — Making employee contributions to the Plan.
Early Eligibility ~ For non-pubtic safety participants, ten years early with five years of'service. For
public safety participants, twenty years of service.

Early Benefit Amount — For non-public safety participants, normal retirement benefit accrued to
early retirement, actuariatly reduced by the number of months annuity commencement date
precedes normal retirement date, if service I1s 20 years or greater, actuarial reduction is from
age 60. For public safety participants, the normal retirement benefit accrued to early
retirement, actuarially reduced based on the years of service prior to normal retirement date.

Vesting Schedule — For non-public safety participants, 25% after 2 years, 50% after 3 years, 75%
after 4 years, and 100% after 5 years, normal retirement date equals 100% vesting. For
employees hired on or after July 1, 1997, 100% after 5 years. For public safety participants,
100% vesting after 20 years of service.

Vested Benefit — Benefit accrued to date of términation adjusted by the appropriate vesting
percentage.

Employee Contributions
Amount — For non-public safety participants, 4% of earnings, no contributions.after
31 years of credited service, For public safety participants, 7% of earnings.
interest Credited — 5% per annum
Death or Termination Refund — Pre-retirement-refund of employee contributions with
interest to date of termination or death. Post-retirement —excess of employee
contributions with interest over annuity payments made, unless another form of benefit
becomes payable to the beneficiary.

Disability — For public safety participants, no eligibility requirements for line of duty, 5 years of
service for non-line of duty.
Benefit Formula — Line of Duty: Tota! disability=66 2/3% final average earnings offset by
other income. Partial disability=15%-50% of final average earnings offset by other
income. Non Line of Duty: 15%-40% of final average earnings offset by other income.

Pre-Retirement Spouse’s Benefit — For non-public safety participants:
Eligibility {A):  Active and attained age 55 and completed 5 years of service, married
one full year prior to death
Benefit Formula (A}:  50% of the pension benefit accrued to date of death
Eligibility (B):  After normal retirement date but before late retirement date and no
optional form of payment in effect.
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Benefit Formula (B):  Pension benefit accrued to date of death payable under the
100% contingent pensioner option.

For public safety participants:

Eligibility {A):  Active participant, married one full year prior to death. If no spouse
available, benefit payable to dependent child.

Benefit Formula (A):  On-duty death — 66 2/3 Final Average Earnings less Social
Security benefits Not on-duty death — 100% of the pension benefit accrued to the date
of death.

Eligibility (B}:  After normal retirement date but before late retirement date and no
optional form of payment in effect.

Benefit Formula {B):  Pension benefit accrued to date of death payable under the
100% contingent pensioner option.

Eligibility {C}:  Death while receiving disability benefits.

Benefit Formula (C): 50% of disability benefit payable to spouseror dependent child
under age 18.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation — The annual pension cost for the year ended
June 30, 2010 was slightly less than the Annual Required Contribution made of $6,547,222, as
shown in the historical chart that follows. As a result, the net pension obligation at June 30,
2010 was decreased to a balance of $542,086. The Annual Required Contribution for the
current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation. The actuarial
assumptions and methods included:

Funding Method — Frozen Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method with amortization of the
unfunded accrued liability using the level percent closed method over 15 years.

Asset Method ~ Five-year smocthed market effective July 1, 2000.

[nvestment Return - 8% compounded annually, net of investment and contract fees.

Post Retirement COLA Increases — 3.25% compounded annially.

Inflation ~3.25%
Mortality - The:RP-2000 Mortality Table for males and the RP-2000 Mortality Table for females,

Salary Increases — 5.5%.compounded annually.
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Termination — For non-public safety participants, the probabilities that participants {males and
female) at the indicated ages terminate within the upcoming year are based on the Crocker T-6
mortality table (with mortality removed), sample rates are as follows:

Age %
20 7.94
25 7.72
30 7.40
35 6.86
40 6.11
a5 5,16
50 362
55 137
&0 0.13

For public safety participants with less than 10 years of service, the probabilities that
participants at the indicated ages terminate within the upcoming year are as follows:

Age %
25 15.4
35 137
45 10.3
55 02.7

For those with 10 or more but less than 15 years of service, the rates are assumed to be 50% of
those with less than 10 years of services. For those with 15 or more years of service, the rates
are 37.5% of the rate for those with less than 10 years of service.

Retirement Age — For non-public safety participants, the earlier of (a) age 62 with 5 years of
service or (b} age 60 with 20 years of service. For participants in the Plan prior to July 1, 1977,
the retirement date is assumed to be age 60. For public safety participants, the retirement date
is assumed to be the earlier of age 60 or 25 hypothetical years of service.

Additional Credit Service — For non-public safety participants, additional credit service at
assumed retirement, due to unused sick leave is eight months, For public safety participants,
we assume 1,500 hours of unused sick leave at assumed retirement. Any military services that is
provided to us is reflected in calculations.

Estimated Expenses — Annual expenses expected to be paid from plan assets are assumed to be
$50,000.
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Survivor Benefits — It is assumed that husbands are 3 years older than wives. For non-public
safety participants, 90% of the male participants and 60% of female participants who are or will
become eligible for coverage under the survivor benefit will be survived by an eligible survivor
For public safety participants, 100% of the participants who are or will become eligible for
coverage under the survivor benefit will be survived by an eligible survivor. 5% of deaths would
be in-line-of-duty and the remainder would be non-service related.

Disability — The 1952 Disability Study of the Society of Actuaries, Period 2, Benefit 5 rates were
used. For public safety participants, 5% of disabilities would be in-line-of-duty and the
remainder would be non-service refated. It is assumed that 100% of line-of-duty disahilities are
total disabilities

Calculation of Net Pension Obligation {NPQ)

Annuai Required Contribution S 6,449,831
Interest on NPO 45,096
Annual Required Contribution Adjustment {66,710)
Annual Pension Cost 6,428,217
Contnibution made (6,449,831)
Change in NPO (21,614}
NPO Beginning of Year 563,700
NP End of Year (6/30/10) $ 542,086

SCHEDULE GF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

Annual Percentage Net

Fiscal Year Bequired of ARC Pension

Ending Contribution Contribution Obligation
6/30/2004 S 2777724 75.6% $ 680,965
6/30/2005 2,955,490 100.1% $ 486,180
6/30/2006 3,911,688 100.0% $ 265,085
6/30/2007 5,104,225 100.0% $ 608,499
6/30/2008 5,527,452 100.0% $ 586,176
6/30/2009 6,165,831 100.0% $ 563,700
6/30/2010 6,449,831 100.0% $ 542,086
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

Actuarial JAAL as

Actuarial Accrued a % of

Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered

Actuarial Assets * (&AL} AAL {UAAL} Ratio Payroll Payroll

Valuation Date {a) . th) {b-aj} {a / b} . {¢) {{b-aj/c)

6/30/04 S 49,323,829 v $ 55688894 5 6,365,085 886% $ 27,278,917 23.3%

5/30/05 $ 54,479,225 ** 5 66,420,831 $ 11,941,606 82.0% $ 31,571.806 37 8%

8/30/06 § 62,164,097 ** $ 79,752,141 $ 17.588.044 77.9% $ 37.819,545 46.5%

6/30f07 S 73,598,315 S 91,470,194 $ 17,871,878 80.5% S 41,645,118 42,9%

6/30/08 S 84,890,274 ** $ 105,247,008 S 20,356,734 20.7% S 44,697,536 45.5%

&/30/00 $ 90,444,005 ** $ 115,830,778 § 25,386,683 78.1% S 44,478,995 57.1%
&/30f10 $ 107,512,136 ** § 128,775.571 *** 5 21,263,435 *** B3.5% ***

Notes:

*  includes contributions recelved in July of that year ifopelicabie to the plon yeéor.
**  bosed on g S-year smoothed morket method effective July 1, 2000.
*e* estimared

C. Llength of Service Award Program {LOSAP) for Volunteer Firemen and Rescue Squad
Members

In accordance with Article 9, Section 130 of the Charles County Code of Public Local
Laws of Maryland, a retirement program has been established for qualified active volunteer
members of the Charles County volunteer fire companies and volunteer rescue squads and
is administered by the Charles County Commissioners, Beginning on January 1, 1974, any
person who has reached the age of sixty and who has completed a minimum of twenty-five
years of certified active volunteer service with any Charles County volunteer fire company or
rescue squad shall receive benefits in the amount of $100 per month for life. An additional
payment of $4 per month shall be added for each full year of volunteer service in excess of
twenty-five years. Seventy-five percent of the volunteer’s benefits shall accrue to his or her
surviving spouse and shall terminate upon the death or remarriage of the spouse.

The contributions for this plan have historically not been actuarially determined. An
actuary study was solicited and contracted mid fiscal-year 2009 and those results were
presented in July 2009, The results on participant data as of December 2008 showed a
funded ratio of 45.4% and an unfunded liability of $9,184,317. However, for the fiscal year
and future, the plan was funded from the revenue derived from one cent of the fire and
rescue tax levied by the County in accordance with Section 123 of the Article noted above.
Contributions made to the program for the year ended june 30, 2010 totaled $752,400 from
the 2009/10 tax levy. The County Commissioners were not obligated to fund the plan, only
to administer it.
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Program assets are held in trust during the year by a custodian. As of June 30, 2010,
M&T held the fair value of net assets for the plan benefits in the amount of $409,324.
Investment decisions are made by an investment firm appointed by the Board of Fire and
Rescue Commissioners. Assets have been invested in various stocks, bonds, and mutual
funds. As of June 30, 2010, BB&T held the fair value of these assets in the amount of
$8,738,907.

NOTE 7. OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
A. Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees three deferred compensation plans, created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plans are administered by
Nationwide Retirement Solutions, Inc., Hartford Life insurance Companies, and MetLife. The
plans, available to all full-time and full-time reduced hours employees permit them to defer
a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to these amounts, property, or
rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries.
Therefore, in accordance with the GASB Statement No. 32, the deferred compensation
investments are not reported in the County’s financial statements. The following schedule
reflects the basic information regarding the County’s program:

Nationwide Hartford Metlife Total
Participants 196 247 62 505
Plan Assets $ 9,210,131 $5,251,093 $ 1,711,349 516,172,573

Annual Employee Contribution $ 709,612 $ 843,074 5 188,697 $ 1,741,383
B. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Charles County's post employment benefit plan is a single employer defined benefit
plan. The following actuarial calculations are based on OPEB benefits provided under the
terms of the County’s substantive plan in effect at the time of the valuation and on a pattern
of sharing costs between the employer and plan members to that point, while also reflecting
a long term financial perspective. Charies County provides medical, dental and vision
benefits to eligible employees who retire from employment after meeting the minimum age
and years of service requirements of the County Employees Retirement Plan or the Sheriff's
Office Retirement Plan which are outlined previousty in these notes.
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The County pays a portion of the participant’s health care premium in-accordance with
the following schedule:

Years of Service % Paid by County

5years 2% per year {10% max)
Years 6-10 3% per year {25% max)
Years 11-15 4% per year (45% max)
Years 16-20 4.38% per year (66.75% max}
Years 21+ 66.75%

For the year ended June 30, 2010, there were 261 former employees and family
members with medical coverage, 301 with dental, and 292 with vision. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010, the County incurred and recorded $1,350,335 in health care
expenditures for these participants on the pay-go hasis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Chligation

The County’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), in an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding, that, if paid on an on-going basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {or excess) over a period not
to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County’s annual
OPEB cost for the year, the combined amount contributed both on the pay-go basis and our
trust contribution, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution s 12,738,000
Interest on OPEB obligation 990,000
Annual required contribution adjustment (870,000}
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 12,358,000
Pay-go contribution made (1,603,000)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 11,245,000
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 24,028,146
Net OPEB obligation - end of year S 35,277,146

The Library’s pro-rata share of the Net OPEB obligation at the end of the current fiscal
yearis $625,276.
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The schedule of funding progress as of the most recent actuarial valuation is as follows:

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Actyarial UAALzs a

Actuarial Accruad % of

Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered

Actuarial Assets {AnL} AAL (UAAL) Rau0 Payrol| Payroll
Valuation Date {a) {b) {b-a} {a/b) {c] {{b-a)/fc}
7/1/08 $ o $ 159,294,000 $ 159,294,000 nfa $ 73,134,517 217.8%
7/1f09 5 430,663 $ 124,041,000 $ 123,610,337 0.3% § 73,743,373 167.6%

7/1/10 s 667,759 $ 134,535,000 $ 133,871241 0.5% £ nfa nfa

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

% of Annual OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost  Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation

June 30, 2008 ©s 15,162,000 9.35% $ 13,743,245
June 30, 2009 S 11,904,000 13.60% S 24,028,146
June 30, 2010 $ 12,858,000 12.51% $ 35,277,146

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

These notes to the financial statements disclose that (1) actuarial valuations for OPEB plans
involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future, and (2) actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. In the effective June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit
method, with linear proration to assumed benefit commencement was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.2% investment rate of return over the fong term and a 4% per year
on future salary increases. The asset valuation method used was the fair value. The annual
healthcare cost trend rate is 9% initially, reduced to an ultimate rate of 4.20% after year
2080. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed
basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2010 was 27 years.
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NOTE 8. CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE COSTS
A. Pisgah Landfill

State and Federal laws and regulations required the County to place a final cover on its
Pisgah landfill site when it stopped accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after the closure. The Pisgah landfill
stopped accepting waste in September 1994. The majority of closure costs related to this
landfill were incurred during Fiscal Year 1997. The landfill was closed In Fiscal Year 2000
with a final cost of 56,841,885, Post-closure costs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
were $63,995.

B. Charles County Landfill

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on the
County Jandfitl site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and post-
closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting
waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet
date. The landfitl is located on a 70 acre site, estimated to provide nearty 5.3 million cubic
vards of landfill space. As of lune 30, 2010, approximately 29% of this space remains
available for future waste disposal. The County is developing the landfill in sections so that
when one section closes another is ready to open. At the close of the fiscal year, the landfill
had Phase |, llA, and II1A open. The $5,160,762 reported as landfilt closure and post-closure
care liability at June 30, 2010, represents the cumulative amount reported to date of the
estimated capacity of the sections that have been opened. The County will récognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and post-closure care as the remaining phases and
capacity is filled. The actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. The County has established a sinking fund reserve for landfill closure
costs through the implementation of the user fee rates at the landfill. The County estimates
the capacity of the landfill and the future date to begin closure with the assistance of
computer models. Construction costs are estimated and a rate is adopted during the
budget process to ensure funds are available when needed. Llandfill closure costs
recognized during the year amounted to $261,837,
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BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Wariance with

Budgeted amounts Actual amounts final budget
Original Final budgetary basis positive {negative)
Revenues:
Taxes - local property 5 180,230,600 5 180,230,600 % 177,986,438 s {2,244,162}
Taxes - iNcome B7.651,000 85,767,940 86,513,316 745,376
Taxes - other local 12,000C.000 12,00C,000 11,263,589 {736,411}
Taxes - state shared 4,132,000 413,000 437,492 24,492
Charges for services 7,638,700 7,651,950 6,950,804 (701,146}
Intergovernmental 1,385,900 3,146,330 3,304,549 158,219
Interest income 3,500,000 637,580 339,568 {298,012}
Other income 2,522.200 2,616,300 2,332,236 {284,064)
Total revenues 299,560,400 292,463,700 289,127,992 {3,335,709)
Expenditures.
Education 156,538,600 156,468,800 156,434,735 34,065
Public safety 75,071,900 72,795,480 71,558,070 1,187,410
General government {including cortingenties) 18,9272.500 18,815,370 19,226,752 {411,382}
Public facilities 18,014,500 20,118,010 19,171,226 946,784
Financial administration 9,183,600 8,281,830 8,016,417 265,413
Judiciat 3,327,700 3,154,860 3,099,199 55,861
Flanning and growth management 3,491,000 3,015,760 3,137,525 {121,765)
Community services 4,121,100 3,765,610 3,558,418 207,192
Health services 3,143,940 3,170,370 3,146,535 23,835
Econgmic development 1,640,400 1,432,170 1,281,413 150,757
Social services 1,030,260 1.031,160 1,638,689 {7.529}
Legislative 1,952,500 1,916,650 1,815,035 101,615
Law 920,800 855,630 884,268 {28,638)
Conservation of natural resources £30,300 569,300 551,419 17,881
Elections 857,800 744,800 535,143 214,657
Debt service
Interast 6,483,500 6,483,500 5,487,255 {2,755)
Total expenditures ) 306,345,800 302,624,300 299,982,099 2,642,201
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures {6,785,400) {10,160,600} {10,854,107) {693,507
Other financing sources {uses):
Praceeds from capital lease agreement 727,300 727.300 521,497 {105,803}
fremium on debt proceeds o Q 1,358,311 1,358,311
Bond Proceeds from debt refunding 0 0 4,853,935 4,853,935
Defeased Bonds 0 o [5,276,540) {5,276,540)
Transfers in 6,695,000 7,385,000 7.395.000 0
Transfers out {4,822,800) {4,404,880) {4,229,698) 175,182
Tatal other financing sources {uses). 2,599,500 3,717,420 4,722,505 1,005,084
Net change In fund balance {4,185,900) {6.443,180) {6,131,602} 311,577
Fund balance - beginning of year 47,316,775 47,316,775 47,316,775 0
Fund balance - end of year 5 43,130,875 $ 40,873,593 5 41,185,173 5 311.578
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ASSETS.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cther receivables
Due [te) from other funds
Other assets
Restricted assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:

Ulabilties.
Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Other habillhes
Total liakilities

Fund balance:
Reserved fund balance
Unreserved.

Designated fund balance
Undesighated fund balence

Tatal fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS GF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING BALANCE SHREET
CTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 20,2010
Puklle Communily Housing Sheriff's Arimal
Planming Judioal Transgortation Safety Devalopment Housing Special Spedal Community Shelterf Drug
Grants Garants Grants cGrants Grants A e Loans Programs [revelopment Control Forfgitures
s [} s 0 $ s} s o 5 4] § 2,616,387 5 0 $ 0 $ o $ 0 5 4
25,515 128,977 893,961 363,576 374,980 72,103 0 3,033 22,203 9,922 0
] 0 1,207,197 ] [ 78,179 453,075 386,814 869 77,548 349,728
7] 163 1] 0 [+ 1 Q o} Q 0 0
0 o ¢ ] 4] o ] 1] 1] 0 Q
5 25515 § 229,140 % 2,101,158 $ 363,576 S 574,980 5 2,767,269 $ 453,075 S 389,847 S 23,672 s avan S 349,728
% 15543 5 11,819 $  1,185934 § 1895 5 o S 7290 s ] §  A5,160 s 14,393 3 24,725 s 12,111
1] 0 L] o 1] o R o Q o [
] 29,350 1,520 44,969 1] 4,744 o o 9,279 5,002 a
4,280 187,971 L4 299,651 218,172 0 o Q 1] Q o
0 4] 0 0 0 a Q 0 1] 3492 1]
20,823 229,140 1,187,454 363,576 218,172 82,034 Q 15,160 23,672 11219 12,111
4,692 o 913,704 a 156,808 2,685,235 453,075 374,687 G 76,252 237,617
] 1] 0 Q o 0 [t a a Q 1]
O o 0 o I [ 0 Q ] Q ]
4,692 0 913,704 O 156,808 2,685,235 453,075 374,687 Q 6,252 337617
% 25,515 % 729,140 5 2,101,158 S 363,576 5 374980 S 2,767,269 5 453075 S 389,847 5 23,672 $ 87471 s 349,728
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET {continued)
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

Agricuttural Fire and Law Tourism Aging Aging So MD Human Cable Emerpenty
Pretervabion Rescue Library Granls 40 fund 43 fund Justlce Araderay Services Frandhuse L Total
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 0 s 0 3 100 5 0 -1 [N 4 $ 0 s 1,466 3 3] H 0 5 2617953
Other receivables ] 4] 0 1] 3462 32,964 3,542 638,277 565,403 125,505 3,414 623
Due {ta) from other funds -1,037,839 2,822,377 54,416 4] 116,164 4] 67,676 52,761 719,897 ] 7,424,541
Other assets Q 1] 1} [} o ¢ 0 0 o o 163
Restricted assats 0 Q 0 0 4 ¢ 0 4] 0 4] 4]
Total assets $ 1037839 S 2,822,377 S 54,516 s Q 5 119626 5 32,964 5 71,218 S 742,504 5 1,285,300 5 125505 S5 13,457,280
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilitres:
Accounts payable ) 4] s 5475 5 3,132 5 4] 5 66,544 13 14,412 S 8,402 $ 185,370 5 62,554 5 1,246 $ 1,702,356
Accrued expenditures 4] o 4] 4] Q o Q 5,455 o [v] 5,455
Deferred revenue 1,037,839 o] 4] a 53,082 [+] 1] A01,777 I 43,454 1,631,016
Due ta other funds 0 o ¢ 0 o 18,552 o 0 o 80,805 808,431
Other liabihtias [4] 2,732,728 a 1] 1] 1] [H 0 o 4] 2,736,230
Total liabilities 1,037,833 2,738,213 3,132 Q 119,626 32,964 8,402 582,602 62,384 125,505 £,884 528
fund balance:
Reserved fund halance Q 24,164 51,384 1] [+] 1] 62,816 142,902 972,416 o 5,322,752
Unreserved:
Cesgnated fund balance 0 o Q 4] 0 o 1} 0 250,000 0 250,00¢
Undesignated fund balance 0 1} 0 0 o Y [ ¢ 0 [t} 1]
Total fund halance 1] 84,159 51,334 [H 4] 4] 62,216 149,902 1,222,416 o 6,572,752
Total frabsities and fund balance 5 1,037,839 S 2,822,377 5 54,516 5 [H % 119,626 s 32,964 s 71218 & 242,504 % 1,285,300 $ 125,505 5 13,457,280
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEMDITURES
AND CHAMGES IN FLND BALANCE
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Public Community Hewaging Sheriffs Ahitiral
Planning Judiclal Transportation Safety Development Housing Special Special Commurily Shelterf g
Grants Grants Grants {Granty Grants Assistance Lovans Frograms Deyek Lontrol Forfeitures
REWVENUES:
Taxes - local property s o $ a s o % 0 4 - o $ o s o & 0 s o 5 o
Charge for services ] 1 £14,713 0 a 1,074,530 0 317,437 0 80,477 160,835
Intergovernmental 765 807,669 3,255,510 1,278,250 948,442 8,213,269 923,721 [} 96,589 "] a
Interestincome a 2 a o 0 £07 '] o o a 251
ther income 1] a5l 178,332 [1] 4} a 3} 0 3} 23 560 1}
Total reveriues 70,765 BOE,033 4,252,955 1,278,250 045,442 9,288,906 923,721 317,437 96,589 114,037 161,100
EXPENDITURES:
Eduzation 1] a a ] a 1} o
Public safety o o o 1,669,123 0 1] a
Community senices 0 o 6,382,322 4] 9,252,232 450,472 0 96,589 o o
Judicial [} 1,104,176 b} a o o 0 a 0 o o
Planring & growth mgmt. RL,073 0 ] ] [} [ ] 0 ] 4 [
Health a o e 0 0 0 o 0 0 a o
Economir development 0 [ o 0 [ 0 o o o /3 o
Sodial services o ] 0 a [ 0 a o o o a
Legisiative o a 0 0 a Q 0 ]
Total expenditures 81,073 1,104,176 6,282,323 1,669,123 9,252,333 450,472 96,589
Excess (deficiency] of revenues
over (under) expenditures (10,308} (295,143) (2,129,368) {290,273) 36,673 473,249 1]
Other financing sources:
Issuance of debt o ] a [} 0 a 1] o 0 a
Transfers in 1] 296,143 2,378,082 390,872 ‘0 0 [ o a o
Transfers out o 0 a * 0 ] 0 a a o
a 196,143 2,278,452 390,873 o 0 a a q ]
Net change in fund balance 110,308) o 149,084 ] 36,673 473,349 1]
Fund balance - beginning of year 15,400 [} 764,620 a 2,648,562 120,174) o
Fand balance - end of year 4,692 0 913,704 1 2,685,235 453,075 o
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REVEMNUES:
Tuxes - local property
Charge for services
Intergovernmental
Interest incorne
Cther income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Education
Puble safety
Community services
Judicial
Planning & gr owth mpmt
Hezlth
Economic deveiopment
Socialservices

Legislative
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Issuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Met change in fund balance
Fund Balance - begmning of year

Fund balance - end of year

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEMDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE {continued)

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Agricuitural Fire and Law Tourism Aging Aging 50 MO Hurran Catle Emergency
Preservation Rescue Libracy Grants 48 fund A3 fund Justice Academy Sarvices Franchise Management Total

4 30,000 ¥ 12115099 o 5 g 4 a -3 [ o 4 [ 4 o o 13,145,095
0 a 73,114 0 a o 16,870 170,336 032,142 6 4,750,458

a 241,504 0 12,291 335,758 405,341 80,000 3,142,978 [ 559,094 20,378,681

[ 20,557 o 0 0 0 o a1a 6 a 21,742

o 0 1,439 [ 53,456 o 432 5,594 250,000 2,096 514,880

30,000 12,377,160 71,553 14,291 389,214 405,841 96312 3,318,322 2,262,142 561,190 37,810,550

a o o 0 ] a a o 1,150,584 0 1,150,584

a 12,493,269 [ 0 [} o 108,202 a o 618,342 15,57%,650

[} o [’ [} 0 a a b o ] 17,120,058

0 [ F6.640 0 1 0 0 0 o o 1,180,816

113,802 a 1] 1] 13 Q o 0 13 1] 194,675

a 0 [ o o o a 3,281,872 o o 3,781872

o o 2 14,281 g g ¢ o 8 o 14,91

a o [ 0 389,204 a05,841 i} 0 [ [ 795,055

] 0 o 1 a 0 [ 0 1 a 5170

113,602 12,493,269 76,640 18,391 389,214 205,841 108,202 3,281,572 1,196,584 618,342 33,371,172
183,602) {115,108} (2,087} a [} a 111,230) 37,450 1,081,558 {57,152) 1,560,312}

a 0 o o 0 [ 9 0 q 1] o

53,602 [ 3,000 0 o [ 20,000 5,286 o 57,152 3,154,508
o 0 n [ 0 [ o {5,285} 1700,000) [ (719,428)

23,602 [ 3,500 [ il 0 40,000 [ {700,000 57,152 2,435,080

a {116,109 513 0 0 0 28,710 37,450 391,558 1 874,768

0 200,772 50,471 0 [ [} 34,106 112,452 830,858 [ 5,697,934

5 oS 84,164 51,384 5 0 3 a 5 o 5 52,816 5 148,502 5 1,222416 ] 6572757
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
OTHER PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010
Inspections County Parks Recreation Environmental Vending
and Review Operations Programs Services Wachines Tital
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents -5 ] s 128,299 & 1,550,188 5 0 $ 64,262 & 1,742,749
Other recaivables 59,788 2,701 20,618 36,364 0 119471
Due [to} from other funds 1,200,199 0 0 1,862,141 7,265 3,069,605
Inventory 1] 54,277 2.124 o] o 56,401
Other current assets 0 0 79,903 0 0 79,803
Total current assets 1,258,987 185,277 1,652,833 1,898,505 71,527 5,068,129
Noncurrent assets
Net capital assets 155427 280,066 8,628,635 3,597.061 0 12,661.189
Restricted assets ol 0 0 0 0 4]
Total Aoncurrent assets 155,427 280,066 8,628,635 3,597.061 0 12,661,189
Total assets 1,415,414 465,343 10,281,468 5,485,566 71,527 17,729,318
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts Pavable 75,156 13,359 72,785 232,692 0 397.996
Accrued expenses 11,473 18,973 138,054 61,909 ¢ 230,409
Due to other funds o] 215,675 4,405,327 0 1] 4,621,002
Unearned revenue 27,139 0 337.504 o 0 364,643
Current portion of long-term debt 69,419 45,600 503,500 210,445 0 828,364
Total current liabilities 187,187 293,607 5,457,174 505,046 Q 6,443,014
Noncurrant liabilities:
Other liabilities 0 0 0 0 ] 0
Bornds payable 0 99,135 6,198,525 2,255,452 0 8,553,112
Net bond issue premiums D [1.246) 117,319 64,178 0 180,251
Long-term debt 105,510 58,716 18,955 106,346 0 289,527
Net pension obligation 14,216 3,696 1,715 6,257 0 25,884
Net OPEB abhgation 364,220 107,409 73,160 212,483 0 757,272
Capital lease abligation 106,592 18,507 0 63,633 0 193,732
Total noncurrent liabilines 590,538 286,217 6,409,674 2,713,348 5} 9,999,778
Total liabilities 777,725 579,824 11,866,848 3,218,395 0 16,442,792
WET ASSETS.
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 45 123,296 1,927,609 1,072,950 o 3,123,900
Unrestricted 837,644 {237,777} {3,512,989) 1,204,221 71,527 {1.837.274)
Total net assets g £37.639 $ {114.481)  $  [1.585,380) $ 2,277,171 § 71527 & 1.286,526
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
OQTHER PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Inspections County Parks Recreation Environmental vending
a2nd Review Operations Programs Services Machines Total
COperating revenues:
Charge for services S 2,116.8% & 758,158 s 2,682,359 S 3,565,524 S 133074 5§ 9,256,011
Cther income 90 717 63.367 5,157 1] 69,371
Total operating revenue 2.116.986 758,875 2,745,726 3,570,721 133,074 9,325.382
Operating expenses:
Personnel services 1.787.007 593,823 1,217,794 1,045,659 o 4,644,283
Utilities 0 49,621 341,333 20,038 0 410,932
Repairs and maintenance 2,345 32569 122,752 94,064 G 251,730
Isurance costs 3605 4,308 32,229 15,630 o 55,769
Indirect costs 20,770 0 0 0 0 20,770
Supplies 11,206 105,719 266,402 2,777 0 589,104
Contract services 1,474,103 12,249 407,588 1,379,193 o] 3,273,133
Other Operating costs 13,845 10,630 44,935 148.282 129,239 345931
Depreciation 50.973 47,342 234,473 319,907 3] 752,695
Total Operating expenses 3,363,854 860,258 2.767.506 3,224,550 125,239 10,345,407
Operating income (ioss) {1,246,868} {101,383 {21,780} 346,171 3.835 1,020,025}
Nonoperating revenues {expenses)
Interest mcome 0 379 2223 10,817 0 13.419
Intergovernmental ] ] 24,474 32,898 0 57.372
Interest expense {6,528} {7,240} {277.631} (87,5786} 0 {378.975)
Gain on disposal of capital assets 7.075 [¢] Q ¢ ¢ 7.075
Total nonoperating
revenue {expenses) $47 {6.851) {250,934) {43,861) 0 {301,109}
Income {loss) before transfers {1,248,321} (108,244) {272,714 302,310 3,835 {1,321,134)
Transfers in 0 69,618 0 0 0 65,618
Transfers out 0 "] 4] N 0 0 Ja]
Change in nat assets {1.246.321) {38.626} {272,714} 302,310 3,835 (1.251.516)
Net assets - beginning of vear 1,884,010 (75.855) (1,312.666) 1,974,861 67,692 2,538,042
Net assets - end of year $ H37,635 b {114,481} S (1,585,380} s 2277171 $ 71,527 5 1,286,526
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{ash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest recemned
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financng actrities:
Intergovernmental
Transfers in {out)
Recelpts fram interfund loans
Repayment of interfund loans
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
activities

Cash flows frem capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of bonds

Proceeds fram new loans

Principal payment s on bonds payable

Principal payments on capit al lease cbligations
Principal payments on loans

Interest paid

Proceeds from disposal of assets

Cash [paid) recerved for capital expenses

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash equbvale s
Cash and cash equivalents - beginming of year

Cash and cash equwalents - end of year

THE COUNTY COMMISSIOMERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
OTHER PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Inspections County Parks Recreation Environmental VYending
and Review Operations Programs Services Machines Total

$ 2127428 $ 761,142 $ 2785335 s 3,547,236 $ 133,074 % 9,354,216
{1,388,851) {188,323) {1,211,072) (1,848,363} [129,287] (4,765,896}
{1,B1L4AR81) {597,738} {1,235,941) {1,046,822) Q (4,691,982)
(1,072,903} [24,919) 338,322 _ 652,051 3,787 {103,662)

1] 379 2,223 10,817 1] 13,413

1] 379 2,223 10,817 0 13,419

0 0 2474 32,888 Q 57,372

0 69,618 2] o] Q 69,618

1,180,931 28,883 973 (72,472) (19,467) 1,118,842

0 1] 310,875 0 o 310,975

1,180,931 98,501 336,422 {39,574} 119,467} 1.556.813

g 0 651,985 500,000 0 1,151,985

v} 14,900 o 25,000 ] 39,900
0 {21,529) [(283,859) (124,059} o 1629,747)
1] (32,809} b] (11%,596) Q [152,405]
(51,972} 0 a 0 o (51,972
(6,528) (7,240) {277.631] (87,576) o (378,975)

1,075 0 Q Q ] 7075
{56,603) (28,813) o (817,063) 0 (902 479)
{108,028) {75,791) 1 109,505) [623,294) 0 (916,618)

o 11,830) 567 AE2 0 (15,680) 549,952

o 130,129 982,726 0 79,942 1,192,797

3 0 5 128,295 $ 1,550,188 5 0 5 64,262 5 1,742,749
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - {continued)
OTHER PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Environmental Vending
Services tiachines Total

Inspertions County Parks Recreation
and Review Operations Programs

Reconctiation of uperating income [loss) to net cash provided
by eperating activities:
Operating Income [loss) S (1L246868) & {101,383 (21,7800 5 336171 & 3835  §  {1,020,025)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 50,973 47,342 334,473 319,907 [} 752,695
Increase [decrease) in compensation-related liabilities
included in long-term debt (26,965} (5,765) {5,908) [9,680) 0 (48,318)
(Increase) decrrase in other receivables 14,700 2,267 {10,426} {23,485} i} {16,944)
(Increase) decrease (n imventones a %08 (561} 0 0 347
[Increase) decrease in other current assets a [u] 26,135 0 1] 26,135
(increase) decrease in restricted assets 4] 0 0 [} 0 0
increase (decresse] in accounts payable 17,630 [1.177] [39,948) [54,757) {48} {78,300}
Increase {decrease) in acerued expenses 2,489 1,849 [12,239) 8,517 0 616
Increase {decrease) in gther hahibties 0 0 1] 1] ] o
Increase {decrease} in Net Pension Obligation 4,289 (103} {145} 23) ] 4,013
Increase [decrease} in Net GPER Obligation 115,106 31,143 18,686 65,401 i} 230,336
Increase [decrease) in deferred revenue {4,257) 0 50,035 0 0 45,778
Net cash provided by operating activities 5 {1.072903) 5 {4,919] g 338,322 & 652,051 5 3,787 5 {103,562)
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inspections Courty Parks Recreation Environmental Vending
and Review Operations Programs Services Machings Tatal
b] 14,900 v} 25,000 a 39,900

Borrowing under capital lease
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Charles County
Commissioners

Equal Opportunity County « Say No To Drugs

Edith ). Patterson, Fd.D.
Vive Prosicleper, District |

CHARLES COUNTY MARYLAND
& Where Eagles Fly-

www.charlescounty.org

Samuel N. G raves, Ir. Department of Fiscal & Administrative Services
District 2 P.0. Box 2150 = 200 Baltimore Strect » La Plata, Maryland 20646
3031-645-0570 « 301-870-2542
MD Relay: 711 « Relay TDD: 1-800-735-2258

Mission Statement: The mission of Charles County Gavernment Is to provide our citizens the
highest quality service possibie in a timely, efficient, and courteous manner. To achieve this geal,
our government must be operated in an open and accessible atmosphere, be based on
comprehensive long- and short-term planning, and have an appropriate managerial organization
tempered by fiscal responsibility

Vision Statement: Charles County is a place where: private initiative is rewarded and businesses
grow and prosper, while the preservation of our heritage is paramount, government services
Reuben B, Collins, It have reached the highest leve| of excellence; the quality of life is felt by its citizens to be the best

g in the region; and its government is recognized as a leader in support of these expectations,

Gary V. Hedge
Distrivt

PDF compression, OCR, web optimization using a watermarked evaluation copy of CVISION PDFCompressor


http://www.cvisiontech.com/

PDF compression, OCR, web optimization using a watermarked evaluation copy of CVISION PDFCompressor


http://www.cvisiontech.com/



